
 Small Business Regulatory Review Board Meeting 

February 20, 2020 

10:00 a.m. 

Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building 

(State Office Tower) 

Conference Room 405 – 235 South Beretania Street, 

Honolulu, HI 96813 

 

  



SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
 

 

Department of Business, Economic Development & Tourism (DBEDT)                                Tel: 808 586-2419 
No. 1 Capitol District Building, 250 S. Hotel Street, Fifth Floor, Honolulu, HI  96813                  
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2359, Honolulu, HI  96804 
Email: dbedt.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov  
Website: sbrrb.hawaii.gov  

 
             

 
 

David Y. Ige 
Governor 

 
Michael McCartney 

DBEDT Director 
 

Members 
 

Robert Cundiff 
Chairperson 

O‘ahu 
 

Garth Yamanaka 
Vice Chairperson 

Hawai’i 
 

Willian Lydgate 
2nd Vice Chairperson 

Kaua’i 
 

Harris Nakamoto 
O‘ahu 

 
Dr. Nancy Atmospera-

Walch 
O‘ahu 

 
Mary Albitz 

Maui 
 

James (Kimo) Lee 
Hawai’i 

 
Jonathan Shick 

             O’ahu 
 

Director, DBEDT 
Voting Ex Officio 

 

AGENDA  
Thursday, February 20, 2020  10:00 a.m. 

Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building - State Office Tower 
Conference Room 405 

South Beretania Street, Honolulu, HI  96813 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

II. Approval of January 16, 2020 Meeting Minutes 
 

III. New Business – Before Public Hearing 

A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to Rules & 
Regulations of the Liquor Control Commission of the County of 
Kauai, promulgated by Department of Liquor Control – County of 
Kauai – Back-up Discussion Leader – Chair Robert Cundiff 
 

B. Discussion and Action on Proposed New Hawaii Administrative Rules 
(HAR) Title 12 Chapter 45.4, State Fire Code, and Repeal of Chapter 
45.3, State Fire Code, promulgated by Department of Labor and 
Industrial Relations – Discussion Leader – Mary Albitz 

 
C. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to HAR Title 16 

Chapter 71, Certified Public Accountants and Public Accountants, 
promulgated by Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs – 
Discussion Leader – Nancy Atmospera-Walch 

 
IV. Legislative Matters 

A. Discussion and Action on the following Legislative Matters: 
a. Update on Senate Bill 2078 Relating to the Small Business 

Regulatory Flexibility Act – Entitles the small business regulatory 
review board to a separate line item within the budget of the 
department of business, economic development, and tourism 

 
b. Upcoming Governor’s Message Submitting for Consideration for 

the Gubernatorial Nomination of Nancy Atmospera-Walch to the 
Small Business Regulatory Review Board for a term estimated to 
expire June 30, 2023 

 
c. Upcoming Governor’s Message,  Submitting for Consideration for 

the Gubernatorial Nomination of Mary Albitz to the Small 
Business Regulatory Review Board for a term to expire June 30, 
2024 

 
d. Upcoming Governor’s Message Submitting for Consideration for 

the Gubernatorial Nomination of Robert Cundiff to the Small 
Business Regulatory Review Board for a term estimated to expire 
June 30, 2023 

 
 



Small Business Regulatory Review Board 
February 20, 2020 

Page 2 
e. Upcoming Governor’s Message Submitting for Consideration for 

the Gubernatorial Nomination of James Lee to the Small Business 
Regulatory Review Board for a term to expire June 30, 2024 
 

f. Upcoming Governor’s Message Submitting for Consideration for 
the Gubernatorial Nomination of Taryn Rodighiero to the Small 
Business Regulatory Review Board for a term estimated to expire 
June 30, 2023 

 
V. Administrative Matters 

A. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs 
in accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii 
Revised Statutes including: 
1. Review of Board’s Interview on ThinkTech’s “Business in 

Hawaii” on January 23, 2020 
2. Discussion of Board’s Potential Outreach Opportunities  

 
VI. Next Meeting: Thursday, March 19, 2020, at 10:00 a.m., 235 South 

Beretania Street, Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building (State Office Tower), 
Conference Room 405, Honolulu, HI  96813 

 
VII. Adjournment 

 

 
If you require special assistance or auxiliary aid and/or services to participate in the public 
hearing process (i.e., sign language, interpreter, wheelchair accessibility, or parking 
designated for the disabled), please call (808) 586-2419 or email dbedt.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov 
at least three (3) business days prior to the meeting so arrangements can be made. 

 

mailto:dbedt.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov


II. Approval of January 16, 2019 Meeting Minutes



1 
 

    Approved: ______________________________ 

 
Small Business Regulatory Review Board 

 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING - DRAFT 
January 16, 2020 
Conference Room 405, 235 South Beretania Street, Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building 
(State Office Tower), Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER: Chair Cundiff called the meeting to order at 10:02 a.m., with a 
quorum present.     

STAFF: DBEDT                    Office of the Attorney General 
    Dori Palcovich 
 Jet’aime Alcos 

      Jennifer Polk-Waihee  

  

II. APPROVAL OF NOVEMBER 21, 2019 MINUTES 
 
Mr. Lee made a motion to accept the November 21, 2019 minutes, as presented.   
Mr. Nakamoto seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed.    
 
III. OLD BUSINESS – After Public Hearing 

 
A. Discussion and Action on the Small Business Statement After Public Hearing 

and Proposed New HAR Title 15, Chapter 120, Community-Based Economic 
Development Loan and Grants Programs, and Repeal of HAR Chapter 116, 
Community-Based Development Loan Program and HAR Chapter 126, 
Community-Based Development Grants Program, promulgated by Department of 
Economic, Development and Tourism (DBEDT)  

 
Mr. Mark Ritchie, Branch Chief at DBEDT’s Business Development and Support Division, 
explained that the proposed new rule was initially two separate rules, Chapter 116 
Community-Based Development Loan Program and Chapter 126 Community-Based 
Development Grants Program; the new proposal combines the two rules.  
 
One area where there is significant small business impact, albeit positive impact, is where 
the new rule requires small businesses to receive only one turndown; whereas the prior rules 
required two turndowns before the business could approach DBEDT for a loan.  Overall, 
these two programs are good for small businesses to get off the ground. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 Robert Cundiff, Chair 
 Garth Yamanaka, Vice Chair 
 Harris Nakamoto 
 Mary Albitz 
 James (Kimo) Lee 
 Carl Nagasako 
 

       
ABSENT MEMBERS: 
 William Lydgate, 2nd Vice 

Chair 
 Dr. Nancy Atmospera-

Walch 
 Jonathan Shick 

 
 

 



 

2 
 

Mr. Nakamoto made a motion to move the proposed rules onto the Governor for adoption.  
Ms. Albitz seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed.   

 
IV. NEW BUSINESS – Before Public Hearing  

 
A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments to Part 5, Facilities Reserve 

Charge, Section III Applicability, promulgated by Department of Water, County of 
Kauai, as follows: 
 
1. e. The Facilities Reserve Charge for a Guest House; and 
2. f. The Facilities Reserve Charge for an Additional Rental Unit  
 

Messrs. Edward Doi and Michael Hinazumi, Engineers from the Department of Water, 
County of Kauai, explained that the County recently changed an ordinance allowing 
guesthouses to be converted into rental units.  Impact studies, in the past, addressed 
single family dwellings as size-limited rental units and were assessed an impact fee of 
$14,115.  Kauai County is looking to reduce this impact fee for the affordable housing 
market size-limits such as residential size-limits; this will be consistent with the charge-
down of $4,000. 
 
Regarding any small business impact, it will likely help stimulate the development of these 
types of rental units and lower future connection fees.  In 2015, a rate study was performed 
based on water usage and impact to the system.  In questioning the offsets, as discussed 
in the rules, Mr. Hinazumi stated they were created by percentages.  If the department is 
unable to do the facility, any developer has the option to use the facility and then will 
receive the offset for the FRC (facilities reserve charge). 
 
Vice Chair Yamanaka agreed that Kauai County is the “high-test” in the state, and because 
the level is being reduced, that is the reason it can be considered “low income housing.”  
Regarding outreach in the community, there was a sizeable amount of feedback that was 
received by the community, all of which was positive.  Regarding growth capacity, Mr. Doi 
explained that based on the County’s general projection of the area, it appears there is 
enough water to service the community in the next five to seven years.    

 
Ms. Albitz made a motion to move the proposed amendments forward to public hearing.   
Vice Chair Yamanaka seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed.   

 
B. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments (Repeal) of Title 13 Chapter 

251, Commercial Activities on State Ocean Waters, Navigable Streams, and 
Beaches, promulgated by Department of Land and Natural Resources (DLNR), 
as follows: 
1. Subchapter 1, Catamaran Captain, Canoe Captain, Canoe Second Captain, 

Surfboard Instructor, Sailboard Instructor and Commercial Motorboat 
Operator Permits 

2. Subchapter 2, Suspension or Revocation of Operator Permits 
3. Subchapter 3, Violation of Operator Permit Provisions 
4. Subchapter 7, Special Operating Restrictions 

 



 

3 
 

Discussion leader, Ms. Mary Albitz introduced Ms. Meghan Statts, Assistant Administrator 
and Legal Fellow Mr. Todd Tashima from DLNR’s Division of Boating and Outdoor 
Recreation (DOBOR), who explained that this proposal pertains only to Waikiki ocean 
waters - from Kewalo Basin to Diamond Head.  The rule creates an operator card for 
anyone who wants to teach surf instructions or canoe paddling in Waikiki.  Numerous surf 
schools were contacted and were asked by DOBOR to utilize the operator card for a while.   
 
Overall, because businesses could not come to a consensus on changes to be made, 
DOBOR opted to repeal the operator permit requirements in the rules.  The businesses that 
will directly benefit from the repeal are those operating commercially on Waikiki Beach and 
in Waikiki Ocean Waters.  Further, removal of the operator permit requirements will allow 
businesses to independently review employee qualifications and remove the State from the 
qualification process.  While “commercial” use permit requirements would remain, the State 
will not be involved in qualifying and certifying employees’ ability to operate outrigger 
canoes and surfboards.   
 
In response to an inquiry by Chair Cundiff as to how a small businessperson is qualified, 
Ms. Statts replied that First Aid and CPR training is required as well as practicing a certain 
number of years.  These qualifications allow an instructor to provide better, safer, and 
proper service to clients.  It is expected that most of the affected small businesses will likely 
support the rule change because it will provide businesses with more flexibility in hiring; 
DOBOR is planning to work closely with the Waikiki businesses.     
 
Mr. Tashima explained that there is no need to go to public hearing because DOBOR is 
only repealing the subchapters, and Chapter 91-3, HRS provides agencies the authority to 
issue only public notice when it is a repeal.  In order to repeal the existing rule, however, 
notice must be advertised in the paper.  Therefore, DOBOR is requesting approval to 
publish notice but not to go to public hearing.  Although it is believed that positive feedback 
is expected, if public notice results in comments that need to be responded to or acted 
upon, DOBOR will come back before this Board.   

 
Vice Chair Yamanaka made a motion to issue public notice for repeal of the subject 
subchapters.  Ms. Albitz seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously agreed.   

 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS  

 
A. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in Accordance 

with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, HRS, on the following: 
 
a. Board to be Interviewed on ThinkTech Hawaii’s “Business in Hawaii” scheduled 

on January 23, 2020 
 

Chair Cundiff introduced Ms. Dailyn Yanagida, Consultant at ThinkTech Hawaii, and 
thanked her for attending today’s meeting.  He noted that this Board was on ThinkTech 
Hawaii at least twice before, but since then the Board has had several changes to report 
such as revamping the website and creating “Regulation for Review.”   
 



 

4 
 

ThinkTech Hawaii is a 501(c) 3 organization.  Part of its mantra is to bring small 
businesses to review as it is a great public service to get the message out about small 
business and to introduce available programs as many businesses are unaware of them.  
Beginning January 1st, the ThinkTech Hawaii studio was moved to the Finance Factors 
Building which allows its guests to be filmed remotely from wherever they are. 
 
Various questions were sent to the Board by Ms. Yanagida in preparation of the segment; 
Chair Cundiff will provide responses prior to the recording.  Also, an email with appearance 
guidelines will be forwarded.  The Board’s presentation can include up to 10 slides in JPEG 
format.  The show will air live on January 23, 2020 on www.thinktechhawaii.com at 2:00 
p.m., and it will be uploaded to YouTube later in the evening.  A link to the segment 
recording will be provided to DBEDT to post on the Board’s website.     
 
Mr. Nakamoto made a motion for the SBRRB to participate in ThinkTech Hawaii on 
Thursday, January 23, 2020, with Chair Robert Cundiff and Ms. Albitz representing the 
Board.  Mr. Carl Nagasako seconded the motion, and the Board members unanimously 
agreed.  

 
b. Discussion and Action on the Delegation of Authority to Board Member(s) 

and/or Staff to Submit Testimony and or Testify on Behalf of the Board during 
the 2020 Hawaii State Legislative Session 

 
Mr. Nakamoto made a motion delegating Chair Robert Cundiff and Vice Chair Garth 
Yamanaka authority to testify on behalf of this Board during the 2020 Hawaii State 
Legislative Session.  Ms. Albitz seconded the motion, and the Board members 
unanimously agreed. 
 
Chair Cundiff stated that the opening of Hawaii’s legislative session was yesterday 
(January 15, 2020), and noted that it appears there is not much money left in the Board’s 
budget; he requested that Mr. Carl Nagasako, ASO Administrator at DBEDT, explain the 
situation to the members.   
 
Mr. Nagasako stated that this Board’s budget is $12,000 for the year.  Although a ten 
percent (10%) budget “holdback” has been incurred for the remaining fiscal year 2020 on 
other DBEDT divisions and attached agencies, no holdback is incurred for this Board; 
therefore, the full $12,000 is allotted.    
 
He added that a big challenge for this Board is that its expenses are expected to increase 
due to the Board’s projected spending of an extra $15,000 for the remaining year.  As a 
result, any excess monies spent over the allotted $12,000 would need to come from 
another program’s budget. 
 
He suggested that one solution, which would be a benefit to the Board, is for the members 
to request additional monies from other resources.  In response to Ms. Albitz’s inquiry as to 
where those resources would come from, Mr. Nagasako stated that, although as a DBEDT 
Administrator he must support the Governor’s budget (which did not include the Board’s 
original $12,000 budget or the extra $15,000 funds request), the State Legislature is where 
to advocate for additional funds.   



 

5 
 

Legislative contacts would be House Representative Sylvia Luke, Chair of Finance, and 
Senator Donovan Della Cruz, Chair of Ways and Means.  Also mentioned were Senator 
Gilbert Keith-Agaran who serves as Vice Chair of Ways and Means and House 
Representative Ty Cullen, Vice Chair of Finance.      
 
As to whether this Board is restricted to any outside fundraising efforts, Deputy Attorney 
General Polk-Waihee stated that caution is needed for the Board to initiate outside 
fundraising efforts; there may also be ethical issues involved.   
 
Chair Cundiff confirmed that DBEDT must support the Governor’s budget.  However, one 
option would be for the Board members to approach State legislators; it would be helpful if 
any of the Board members personally know legislators on the Finance and Ways and 
Means Committees.    
 
Finally, Chair Cundiff mentioned that Senate President Kouchi recently submitted three 
Senate member nominations to Governor Ige - Nancy Atmospera-Walch, Taryn Rodighiero 
from Kauai, and Jonathan Young.  
 

c. Meetings with Board Members and State Department Directors 
 
Chair Cundiff indicated that this an on-going agenda item and he encouraged the members 
to continue to meet with state department directors. 

 
VI. NEXT MEETING – The next meeting is scheduled for Thursday, February 20, 2020 in 

Conference Room 405, 235 South Beretania Street, Leiopapa A Kamehameha 
Building (State Office Tower), Honolulu, Hawaii at 10:00 a.m. 
 

VII. ADJOURNMENT – Mr. Lee made a motion to adjourn the meeting and Mr. Nagasako 
seconded the motion; the meeting adjourned at 11:00 a.m.                



 

III.  New Business – Before Public Hearing 

A. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments 
to Rules & Regulations of the Liquor Control 
Commission of the County of Kauai, promulgated 
by Department of Liquor Control – County of 
Kauai 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

  



JetaimeA
Received









JetaimeA
Received



































































III.  New Business – Before Public Hearing 

B. Discussion and Action on Proposed new Hawaii 
Administrative Rules (HAR) Title 12 Chapter 45.4, 
State Fire Code, and Repeal of Chapter 45.3, State 
Fire Code, promulgated by Department of Labor 
and Industrial Relations 

 

  



  
 

 
  

 

   

 

  

  

  

  
     

   
 

  

  

 
    

 
  

  

                     
      

 

 
      

             

  
 

  
    

      

   

  
   

   

PRE-PUBLIC HEARING SMALL BUSINESS IMPACT STATEMENT 
TO THE 

SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD 
(Hawaii Revised Statutes §201M-2) 

Date: 

Department or Agency: 

Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: 

Chapter Name: 

Contact Person/Title: 

E-mail: Phone: 

A. To assist the SBRRB in complying with the meeting notice requirement in HRS §92-7, please attach 
a statement of the topic of the proposed rules or a general description of the subjects involved. 

B. Are the draft rules available for viewing in person and on the Lieutenant Governor’s Website 
pursuant to HRS §92-7? 

Yes No 

If “Yes,” provide details: 

I. Rule Description: 
New Repeal Amendment Compilation 

II. Will the proposed rule(s) affect small business? 
Yes No 

(If “No,” no need to submit this form.) 

* “Affect small business” is defined as “any potential or actual requirement imposed upon a small business . . . that will cause a 
direct and significant economic burden upon a small business, or is directly related to the formation, operation, or expansion 
of a small business.” HRS §201M-1 

* “Small business” is defined as a “for-profit corporation, limited liability company, partnership, limited partnership, sole 
proprietorship, or other legal entity that: (1) Is domiciled and authorized to do business in Hawaii; (2) Is independently owned 
and operated; and (3) Employs fewer than one hundred full-time or part- time employees in Hawaii." HRS §201M-1 

III. Is the proposed rule being adopted to implement a statute or ordinance that 
does not require the agency to interpret or describe the requirements of the 
statute or ordinance? 

Yes No 
(If “Yes” no need to submit this form. E.g., a federally-mandated regulation that does not afford the 
agency thediscretion to consider less restrictive alternatives. HRS §201M-2(d)) 

IV. Is the proposed rule being adopted pursuant to emergency rulemaking? (HRS §201M-2(a)) 

Yes No 
(If “Yes” no need to submit this form.) 

* * * 

Revised 09/28/2018 

JetaimeA
Received



       

 
 

    
 

    
  

   

   

  

  

    

  

  
   

 

Pre-Public Hearing Small Business Impact Statement – Page 2 

If the proposed rule affects small business and are not exempt as noted above, 
please provide a reasonable determination of the following: 

1. Description of the small businesses that will be required to comply with the proposed rules 
and how they may be adversely affected. 

2. In dollar amounts, the increase in the level of direct costs such as fees or fines, and indirect 
costs such as reporting, recordkeeping, equipment, construction, labor, professional 
services, revenue loss, or other costs associated with compliance. 

If the proposed rule imposes a new or increased fee or fine: 

a. Amount of the current fee or fine and the last time it was increased. 

b. Amount of the proposed fee or fine and the percentage increase. 

c. Reason for the new or increased fee or fine. 

d. Criteria or methodology used to determine the amount of the fee or fine (i.e., 

Consumer Price Index, Inflation rate, etc.). 

3. The probable monetary costs and benefits to the agency or other agencies directly affected, 
including the estimated total amount the agency expects to collect from any additionally 
imposed fees and the manner in which the moneys will be used. 

Revised 09/28/2018 



       

  
 

  

 
  

   
  

 

 
 

 

Pre-Public Hearing Small Business Impact Statement – Page 3 

4. The methods the agency considered or used to reduce the impact on small business 
such as consolidation, simplification, differing compliance or reporting requirements, 
less stringent deadlines, modification of the fines schedule, performance rather than 
design standards, exemption, or other mitigating techniques. 

5. The availability and practicability of less restrictive alternatives that could be 
implemented in lieu of the proposed rules. 

6. Consideration of creative, innovative, or flexible methods of compliance for small 
businesses. The businesses that will be directly affected by, bear the costs of, or 
directly benefit from the proposed rules. 

7. How the agency involved small business in the development of the proposed rules. 

a. If there were any recommendations made by small business, were the 
recommendations incorporated into the proposed rule? If yes, explain. If no, 
why not. 

Revised 09/28/2018 



       

 

  

   
      

    

  
    

 
 

   
 

  
  

 

 

   
   

      

Pre-Public Hearing Small Business Impact Statement – Page 4 

8. Whether the proposed rules include provisions that are more stringent than those 
mandated by any comparable or related federal, state, or county standards, with an 
explanation of the reason for imposing the more stringent standard. 

If yes, please provide information comparing the costs and benefits of the proposed rules to 
the costs and benefits of the comparable federal, state, or county law, including the following: 

a. Description of the public purposes to be served by the proposed rule. 

b. The text of the related federal, state, or county law, including information about 
the purposes and applicability of the law. 

c. A comparison between the proposed rule and the related federal, state, or 
county law, including a comparison of their purposes, application, and 
administration. 

d. A comparison of the monetary costs and benefits of the proposed rule with the 
costs and benefits of imposing or deferring to the related federal, state, or 
county law, as well as a description of the manner in which any additional fees 
from the proposed rule will be used. 

e. A comparison of the adverse effects on small business imposed by the 
proposed rule with the adverse effects of the related federal, state, or county 
law. 

* * * 

Small Business Regulatory Review Board / DBEDT 
Phone: (808) 586-2594 / Email: DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov 

This Statement may be found on the SBRRB Website at: http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb/resources/small- business-impact-statements 

Revised 09/28/2018 

http://dbedt.hawaii.gov/sbrrb/resources/small-business-impact-statements
mailto:DBEDT.sbrrb.info@hawaii.gov


DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
 

Repeal of Chapter 12-45.3 and adoption of Chapter 12-45.4 
Hawaii Administrative Rules 

 
(Date of adoption by agency) 

 
 
 

1.   Chapter 12-45.3, Hawaii Administrative Rules, entitled “State Fire Code,” 
is repealed. 

 
2.   Chapter 12-45.4, Hawaii Administrative Rules, entitled “State Fire Code,” 

is adopted to read as follows:  __________________________________________ 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

JetaimeA
Received



 

45.4-1 
 

“HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES (HAR) 
 

TITLE 12 
 

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS  
 

SUBTITLE 7 
 

BOARDS 
 

CHAPTER 45.4 
 

STATE FIRE CODE 
 

Subchapter 1  Rules of General Applicability 

§12-45.4-1 Purpose 
§12-45.4-2 Scope 
§12-45.4-3 Definitions 
§12-45.4-4 Adoption of the 2018 National Fire Protection Agency (NFPA) 1, 

 Fire Code 
§12-45.4-5 County permit authorization 
 
 
 

Subchapter 2  Amendments to the 2018 NFPA 1, Fire Code 

§12-45.4-6 Title 
§12-45.4-7 Conflicts 
§12-45.4-8 Building code 
§12-45.4-9 Administration and enforcement authority 
§12-45.4-10 Fire insurance records and reports 
§12-45.4-11 Permits 
§12-45.4-12 Certificates of fitness authorization 
§12-45.4-13 Mandatory certificates of fitness 
§12-45.4-14 Certification of applicant general 
§12-45.4-15 Certification of applicant transfer 
§12-45.4-16 Certification of applicant issuing period 
§12-45.4-17 Revocation or suspension of certificates of fitness  conditions 
§12-45.4-18 Revocation or suspension of certificates of fitness 
 new issuance period 
§12-45.4-19 Revocation or suspension of certificates of fitness 
  appeals 



 

45.4-2 

§12-45.4-20 NFPA publications 
§12-45.4-21 NFPA official definitions 
§12-45.4-22 Electrical code 
§12-45.4-23 Mechanical code 
§12-45.4-24 Plumbing code 
§12-45.4-25 Maintenance, inspection, and testing general requirements 
§12-45.4-26 Authorization to witness maintenance, inspection, and testing 
§12-45.4-27 Owner/occupant responsibilities of unsafe buildings  
§12-45.4-28 On-premises fire fighting organization fire reporting   
§12-45.4-29 Posting of emergency action plans 
§12-45.4-30 Open flame, candle, open fire, and incinerator 
 permits 
§12-45.4-31 Open flame, candle, open fire, and incinerator 
 hazardous conditions 
§12-45.4-32 Outdoor fires 
§12-45.4-33 Open fires 
§12-45.4-34 Cooking equipment on balconies 
§12-45.4-35 Storage of combustible materials 
§12-45.4-36 Elevators, escalators, and conveyors 
§12-45.4-37 Waste chute, incinerator, and laundry chute installations and 

maintenance 
§12-45.4-38 Emergency command center 
§12-45.4-39 Roof access for one- and two-family dwellings and townhouses 
§12-45.4-40 Fire door identification 
§12-45.4-41 Fire protection systems general 
§12-45.4-42 Fire protection systems hose connection   
§12-45.4-43 Fire protection systems records 
§12-45.4-44 Fire protection systems authority having jurisdiction (AHJ) reports   
§12-45.4-45 Fire protection systems out of service 
§12-45.4-46 Fire protection systems advanced notification 
§12-45.4-47 Fire protection systems inspection, testing, and maintenance 

labeling 
§12-45.4-48 Fire protection systems reference dates table  
§12-45.4-49 Fire protection systems existing assembly occupancies  
§12-45.4-50 Fire protection systems existing educational occupancies 
§12-45.4-51 Fire protection systems existing health care occupancies 
§12-45.4-52 Fire protection systems existing detention and correctional 

facilities 
§12-45.4-53 Fire protection systems existing hotels and dormitories 
§12-45.4-54 Fire protection systems existing residential board and care 

facilities  
§12-45.4-55 Fire protection systems existing mercantile occupancies  
§12-45.4-56 Fire protection systems existing high-rise buildings 



 

45.4-3 
 

§12-45.4-57 Fire protection systems table 
§12-45.4-58 Stationary fire pump inspection, testing, and maintenance 
§12-45.4-59 Private fire service mains inspection, testing, and maintenance 
§12-45.4-60 Private service mains inspection, testing, and maintenance 

schedule 
§12-45.4-61 Annual maintenance record keeping 
§12-45.4-62 Extinguisher maintenance six-year internal examination label 
§12-45.4-63 Extinguisher maintenance service collar information 
§12-45.4-64 Positive alarm sequence occupant notification 
§12-45.4-65 New and existing lodging and rooming houses 
§12-45.4-66 Existing apartment buildings 
§12-45.4-67 Existing mercantile occupancies 
§12-45.4-68 Existing business occupancies 
§12-45.4-69 Existing day care and health care occupancies 
§12-45.4-70 Fire alarm systems inspection, testing, and maintenance 

notification  
§12-45.4-71 Fire alarm systems inspection, testing, and maintenance labels 
§12-45.4-72 Fire alarm systems inspection, testing, and maintenance tag 
§12-45.4-73 Fire alarm systems manually activated alarm-initiating devices 
§12-45.4-74 Other fire protection systems compliance 
§12-45.4-75 Other fire protection systems inspection, testing, and 

maintenance label 
§12-45.4-76 Means of egress application  
§12-45.4-77 Screen door assemblies and storm door assemblies 
§12-45.4-78 Locks, latches, and alarm devices  
§12-45.4-79 Allowable occupant load increases  
§12-45.4-80 Egress capacity  
§12-45.4-81 Special signs at elevators  
§12-45.4-82 Water supply during construction  
§12-45.4-83 Required access  
§12-45.4-84 Fire department access road widths  
§12-45.4-85 Fire department access road vertical clearance 
§12-45.4-86 Fire department access roads, bridges, or culverts 
§12-45.4-87 Fire department access roads, bridges, or culverts live loads 
§12-45.4-88 Water supply fire flow 
§12-45.4-89 Minimum number of fire hydrants for fire flow  
§12-45.4-90 Hydrants out of service  
§12-45.4-91 Nonmetallic containers  
§12-45.4-92 Flame-retardant requirements  
§12-45.4-93 Means of egress floor plan  
§12-45.4-94 Means of egress inspection overcrowding 
§12-45.4-95 Assembly open flame devices and pyrotechnics general 
§12-45.4-96 Assembly open flame devices and pyrotechnics fire prevention 



 

45.4-4 

§12-45.4-97 Use of school facilities for sleeping 
§12-45.4-98 Emergency egress drills in schools 
§12-45.4-99 Manufactured housing   
§12-45.4-100 Tents and temporary membrane structures 
§12-45.4-101 Physical protection for outside aboveground tanks   
§12-45.4-102 Emergency electrical disconnect signs 
§12-45.4-103 Fuel dispensing age limitation 
§12-45.4-104 Fuel dispensing prohibition of foreign objects 
§12-45.4-105 Fuel dispensing signs 
§12-45.4-106 Attended self-service fuel dispensing prohibition of foreign objects 
§12-45.4-107 Unattended self-service fuel dispensing prohibition of foreign 

objects 
§12-45.4-108 Flammable finish spray booth inspection, testing, and 

maintenance  
§12-45.4-109 Commercial cooking extinguishing system acceptance test 
§12-45.4-110 Inoperable commercial cooking extinguishing or exhaust system 
§12-45.4-111 Commercial cooking inspection, testing, and maintenance 

reference table 
§12-45.4-112 Commercial cooking extinguishing system inspection, testing, and 

maintenance reports 
§12-45.4-113 Commercial cooking extinguishing system inspection, testing, and 

maintenance tag 
§12-45.4-114 Hazardous materials management plan (HMMP) on site 
§12-45.4-115 Hazardous materials protection from vehicles 
§12-45.4-116 Fireworks removal 
§12-45.4-117 Fireworks regulation 
§12-45.4-118 Fireworks permits 
§12-45.4-119 Consumer fireworks retail sales 
§12-45.5-120 Flammable and combustible liquid tank permits   
§12-45.4-121 Unpermitted flammable and combustible liquid tank prohibition 
§12-45.4-122 Underground flammable and combustible liquid tank closure in 

place 
§12-45.4-123 Unpermitted liquefied petroleum gases and natural gases tank 

prohibition 
 
 
 
Historical Note:  Chapter 12-45.4 is based substantially upon chapter 12-45.3.  [Eff 
6/6/86; am and comp 8/13/87; am and comp 4/18/92; R                                ]



§45.4-5 

45.4-5 
 

SUBCHAPTER 1 
 

RULES OF GENERAL APPLICABILITY 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-1  Purpose.  The purpose of this chapter is to adopt the state fire 
code as required by section 132-3, Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS).   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-2  Scope.  This chapter sets forth minimum requirements necessary 
to establish a reasonable level of fire and life safety and property protection from the 
hazards created by fire, explosion, and dangerous conditions.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-3  Definitions.  In this chapter, unless the context otherwise 

requires: 
“Annex” means the explanatory material attached to the NFPA 1, Fire Code. 
“Authority having jurisdiction” or “AHJ” means an organization, office, or 

individual responsible for enforcing the requirements of a code or standard or for 
approving equipment, materials, an installation, or a procedure. 

“NFPA” means the National Fire Protection Association. 
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-4  Adoption of the 2018 NFPA 1, Fire Code.  The NFPA 1, Fire 

Code, 2018 edition is made a part of this chapter subject to the amendments 
provided in this chapter.  The annexes to the NFPA 1, Fire Code are not adopted 
except as provided in this chapter. 
[Eff                                ]  (Auth: HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-5  County permit authorization.  Each county may, by ordinance, 
require that a permit be obtained from the AHJ for any area regulated by this 
chapter.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 



§45.4-6 

45.4-6 
 

SUBCHAPTER 2 
 

AMENDMENTS TO THE NFPA 1, FIRE CODE 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-6  Title.  Section 1.1.2 is amended to read as follows:  1.1.2  Title.  
This code shall be known as the State Fire Code, may be cited as such, and will be 
referred to in this chapter as “this code”.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS 
§132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-7  Conflicts.  Section 1.3.3.3 is added to read as follows:  1.3.3.3  

When a difference occurs in the requirements for design and construction for new 
construction of buildings between this code and the building code, the building code 
shall apply. 

Exception:  This code does not apply to new construction, except when this 
code is specifically referenced from the building code.  [Eff                                ]   
(Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 

 
§12-45.4-8  Building code.  Section 1.3.6.3 is amended to read as follows:  

1.3.6.3  Repairs, renovations, alterations, reconstruction, change of occupancy, and 
additions to buildings shall conform with the building code.  [Eff                                ]  
(Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-9  Administration and enforcement authority.  Section 1.6 is 
amended to read as follows:  1.6  Administration and enforcement authority.  This 
Code shall be administered and enforced by the AHJ designated by Chapter 132, 
HRS.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 

 
 
§12-45.4-10  Fire insurance records and reports.  Section 1.11.5 is added 

to read as follows:  1.11.5  Upon the AHJ’s request, every company or agent 
transacting the business of fire insurance in this state shall be required to file with 
the AHJ in each county a monthly record of fire losses paid or incurred on forms 
prescribed, permitted, or furnished by the AHJ.  These forms shall contain 
information on each fire loss, such as the name of the insured, name of the adjuster, 



§45.4-14 

45.4-7 
 

date and time of fire, construction of building or structure burned, amount of 
insurance paid, and apportionment of the loss where more than one company 
insured the risk.  The current National Fire Incident Reporting System report forms 
may be used.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-11  Permits.  Section 1.12.8 and Tables 1.12.8(a), (b), (c), and (d) 
are deleted in their entirety.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  
HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-12  Certificates of fitness authorization.  Section 1.13.1 is 
amended to read as follows:  1.13.1  Certificates of fitness authorization.  The AHJ 
shall have the authority to require certificates of fitness and collect fees for 
individuals performing any of the following activities: 

(1) Maintenance and testing of portable fire extinguishers; 
(2) Maintenance and testing of water-based fire protection systems; 
(3) Other fire protection systems; 
(4) Private fire hydrants; and 
(5) Maintenance and testing of fire alarm systems.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-16) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-13  Mandatory certificates of fitness.  Section 1.13.2 is amended 

to read as follows:  1.13.2  Mandatory certificates of fitness.  The AHJ shall require 
certificates of fitness and collect fees for individuals performing any of the following 
activities: 

(1) Maintenance and testing of portable fire extinguishers; 
(2) Maintenance and testing of water-based fire extinguishing systems; 
(3) Maintenance and testing of other fire extinguishing systems; 
(4) Maintenance and testing of private fire hydrants; and  
(5) Maintenance and testing of fire alarm systems. 
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-16) 

 
 
 

§12-45.4-14  Certification of applicant general.  Section 1.13.5.1 is 
amended to read as follows:  1.13.5.1 Individuals applying for a certificate of 
fitness shall furnish to the AHJ evidence of familiarity with applicable codes, 
regulations, standards, listings, guidelines, and construction and safety 



§45.4-14 

45.4-8 

practices for the activity for which the certificate of fitness is issued.  
Documentation of satisfactory completion of courses, classes, and testing and 
experience shall be submitted to the AHJ.  In addition, a completed 
application and a copy of a current driver’s license shall be submitted to the 
AHJ.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-16) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-15  Certification of applicant transfer.  Section 1.13.6 is 

amended to read as follows:  1.13.6  Certificates of fitness shall not be 
transferrable. 

(1) The AHJ shall provide the applicant with an identification of their 
certificate of fitness which shall be presented by the individual 
when performing inspection, testing, and maintenance for the 
licensed activity to any person seeking services, or the AHJ, 
upon request. 

(2) The fee for the certificate of fitness is payable by check or 
money order to the county fire department and is 
nonrefundable.  Cash will not be accepted. 

(3) Classification of certificate of fitness and fees are as follows: 
(A) Portable fire extinguisher - $100; 
(B) Fire protection systems: 

(i) Water-based fire extinguishing system - $100; and 
(ii) Other fire extinguishing systems - $100; 

(C) Private fire hydrants - $100; 
(D) Fire alarm system - $100; and 
(E) Certificate of fitness renewals - $100 every three years for each 

category and/or subcategory.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:   
HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-16) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-16  Certification of applicant issuing period.  Section 

1.13.7 is amended to read as follows:  1.13.7  Certificates of fitness shall be 
issued in accordance with section 12-44.1 HAR and renewed every three 
years.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-16) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-17  Revocation or suspension of certificates of fitness 
conditions.  Section 1.13.12.1 is amended to read as follows:  1.13.12.1  (a) 
The county fire department may revoke or suspend the certificate of fitness 



§45.4-20 

45.4-9 
 

for just cause if, after notice, it finds that the certificate of fitness holder: 
(1) Violated any portion of the State Fire Code; 
(2) Performed any work in an unsafe manner; 
(3) Misrepresented services rendered; 
(4) Rendered inoperative a portable fire extinguisher, fire protection 

system, or fire alarm system required by statute or administrative rule 
without notification to the AHJ.  The individual shall present an 
alternative plan or appliance acceptable to the AHJ before leaving the 
property.  The system may be rendered inoperative during such time 
the system is being maintained or tested or pursuant to court order; 

(5) Falsified any record required to be maintained by this chapter; and 
(6) Improperly maintained or tested any portable fire extinguisher, fire 

protection system, or fire alarm system. 
(b) Upon revocation, no new certificate of fitness shall be issued to the individual 

for a period of up to one year from the date of the revocation during which 
time the individual shall cease all related activities as a licensed contractor. 

[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-16) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-18  Revocation or suspension of certificates of fitness new 
issuance period.  Section 1.13.12.1.1 is added to read as follows:  1.13.12.1.1  
Upon revocation, no new certificate of fitness shall be issued to the individual for a 
period of up to one year from the date of the revocation during which time the 
individual shall cease all related activities as a certificate of fitness holder.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-16) 
 
 

 
§12-45.4-19  Revocation or suspension of certificates of fitness appeals.  

Section 1.13.12.4 is amended to read as follows:  1.13.12.4  Decisions for denial, 
revocation, or suspension may be appealed in accordance with each county’s 
appeal process.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-
16) 
 

 
 
§12-45.4-20  NFPA publications.  Section 2.2 is amended to read as follows:  

2.2  NFPA 1124:  Code for the Manufacture, Transportation, Storage, and Retail 
Sales of Fireworks and Pyrotechnic Articles, 2013 Edition.  [Eff                                ] 
(Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-16) 
 



§45.4-21 

45.4-10 
 

§12-45.4-21  NFPA official definitions.  Section 3.2 is amended by adding 
as follows:  “Inoperable system sign” means a weather-resistant sign denoting 
“Inoperable” having a white background with red letters.  The letters shall be a 
minimum height of three inches and a minimum width of one-fourth of an inch stroke.  
“Water-based fire extinguishing system” means any Class I, II, and III and combined 
standpipe system, automatic sprinkler system, fire pumps or automatic water spray 
fixed system utilizing water as an extinguishing agent.  [Eff                                ]   
(Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-22  Electrical code.  Section 3.3.54.2 is amended to read as 

follows:  3.3.54.2  Electrical Code.  The electrical code is the electrical code adopted 
by the jurisdiction.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-
3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-23  Mechanical code.  Section 3.3.54.3 is amended to read as 

follows:  3.3.54.3  Mechanical Code.  The mechanical code is the mechanical code 
adopted by the jurisdiction.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  
HRS §132-3) 
 
 

 
§12-45.4-24   Plumbing code.  Section 3.3.54.4 is amended to read as 

follows:  3.3.54.4  Plumbing Code.  The plumbing code is the plumbing code 
adopted by the jurisdiction.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  
HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-25  Maintenance, inspection, and testing general requirements.  

Section 4.5.8.1 is amended to read as follows:  4.5.8.1  Whenever or wherever any 
device, equipment, system, condition, arrangement, level of protection, fire-resistive 
construction, or any other feature is required for compliance with the provisions of 
this code, such device, equipment, system, condition, arrangement, level of 
protection, fire-resistive construction, or other feature shall thereafter be 
continuously maintained.  Maintenance shall be provided in accordance with 
applicable NFPA requirements and the building code or requirements developed as 
part of a performance-based design or as directed by the AHJ.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3)



§45.4-30 

45.4-11 
 

§12-45.4-26  Authorization to witness maintenance, inspection, and 
testing.  Section 4.5.8.8 is added to read as follows:  4.5.8.8  The AHJ is authorized 
to witness any maintenance or test of a portable fire extinguisher, fire protection 
system, and fire alarm system by a certificate of fitness holder to determine if the 
maintenance or test meets the minimum requirements set forth by this code, 
applicable rules, and statutes.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  
HRS §132-16) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-27  Owner/occupant responsibilities of unsafe buildings.  

Section 10.2.4 is amended by adding a sentence at the end to read as follows:  For 
abatement of unsafe buildings, see the building code.  [Eff                                ]   
(Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-28  On-premises fire fighting organization fire reporting.  

Section 10.6.1.2 is amended to read as follows:  10.6.1.2  Facilities that have 
established on-premises fire-fighting organizations and have coordinated and 
arranged procedures approved by the AHJ, shall notify the fire department in 
accordance with the approved plan.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  
(Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-29  Posting of emergency action plans.  Section 10.8.2.1 is 
amended as follows:  10.8.2.1 (7)  Posting of emergency evacuation diagrams and 
other items required by the AHJ.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  
(Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-30  Open flame, candle, open fire, and incinerator permits.  

Sections 10.10.1, 10.10.1.1, 10.10.1.2, 10.10.1.3, and 10.10.1.4 are deleted and 
replaced with sections 10.10.1 and 10.10.1.1 to read as follows:  10.10.1  
Agricultural Burning.  See Department of Health, Clean Air Branch, regulation of fires 
for agricultural burning. 

(1) Except for closed incinerators approved by the state health 
department, private incineration is prohibited by state health laws.  
Clearance by the state health department for and notification of all 
agricultural fires either by telephone or written notice shall be on file 
with the AHJ before these fires are permitted. 



§45.4-30 

45.4-12 

(2) For fire safety regulations, see county requirements and 10.10.1.1. 
 

10.10.1.1  Open Fires in Counties.  Control of the following fires shall be 
established by each county: 

(1) Fires for agricultural purposes; 
(2) Fires for recreational, decorative, or ceremonial purposes; 
(3) Fires to abate a fire hazard; 
(4) Fires for prevention or control of disease or pests; 
(5) Fires for training of fire fighting personnel; 
(6) Fires for disposal of dangerous materials; 
(7) Fires for residential bathing purposes; and 
(8) Fires for cooking of food.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-

3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-31  Open flame, candle, open fire, and incinerator hazardous 
conditions.  Section 10.10.2 is amended to read as follows:  10.10.2  The AHJ shall 
have the authority to prohibit any or all open flames; candles; and open, recreational, 
and cooking fires or other sources of ignition or establish special regulations on the 
use of any form of fire or smoking material where circumstances make such 
conditions hazardous.  Open flame devices utilizing gas or liquid fuel, such as, but 
not limited to, tiki torches, shall keep a minimum three-foot clearance from the flame 
to combustibles and maintain a vertical height of seven feet from grade to flame.  
The AHJ is authorized to modify these clearances based on site conditions.  [Eff                                
]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-32  Outdoor fires.  Section 10.10.3.1 is amended to read as 

follows:  10.10.3.1  Outdoor fires shall not be built, ignited, or maintained in or upon 
hazardous fire areas without approval from the AHJ.  [Eff                                ]  
(Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-33  Open fires.  Section 10.10.4.1 is amended to read as follows: 

10.10.4.1  Open fires shall be located no less than 50 feet (15 meters) from 
structures or as approved by the AHJ.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-
3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 



§45.4-38 

45.4-13 
 

§12-45.4-34  Cooking equipment on balconies.  Section 10.10.6.2 is 
deleted in its entirety.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS 
§132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-35  Storage of combustible materials.  Section 10.18.1.1 is added 

to read as follows:  10.18.1.1  Signage posting.  In storage and mercantile 
occupancies, a sign shall be posted on the automatic sprinkler riser stating the 
maximum allowable storage height for the design of the sprinkler system as 
approved by the AHJ.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS 
§132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-36  Elevators, escalators, and conveyors.  Section 11.3 is 

deleted in its entirety.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS 
§132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-37  Waste chute, incinerator, and laundry chute installations 

and maintenance.  Section 11.6.2 is amended to read as follows:  11.6.2 Waste 
chute, incinerator, and laundry chute maintenance standards.  Waste chutes, 
laundry chutes, and incinerators shall be maintained in accordance with NFPA 82, 
unless such installations are approved existing installations, which shall be permitted 
to be continued in service.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  
HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-38  Emergency command center.  Section 11.9.5 is amended by 

adding Items 12, 13, and 14 to read as follows: 
(12) The room shall be accessible from the exterior of the building. 
(13) Control panels in the emergency command center shall be 

permanently identified as to its function. 
(14) Alarm, supervisory, and trouble signals shall be annunciated in 

compliance with the State Fire Code in the emergency command 
center by means of an audible and visual indicator.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 



§45.4-39 

45.4-14 
 

§12-45.4-39  Roof access for one- and two-family dwellings and 
townhouses.  Section 11.12.2.2.2 is amended to read as follows:  11.12.2.2.2  Roof 
access for one- and two-family dwellings and townhouses for photo-voltaic systems.  
One- and two-family dwellings need not comply with this section. 
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 

 
§12-45.4-40  Fire door identification.  Section 12.4.7 is added to read as 

follows:  12.4.7 Fire door identification.  When required by the AHJ, a sign shall be 
displayed permanently near or on each required fire door in letters no less than one 
inch (25.4 millimeters) high.  The wording of the required sign can only be modified 
with prior written approval of the AHJ.  The sign shall read as follows: 

 
FIRE DOOR 

DO NOT OBSTRUCT 
KEEP CLOSED 

 
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-41  Fire protection systems general.  Section 13.1 is amended by 
adding a new first paragraph and exception to read as follows:  13.1  Fire protection 
systems general.  The provisions of this chapter for new construction do not apply.  
For new construction, see the building code.  Existing buildings shall be maintained 
to the requirements to which it was built, unless specifically indicated it applies to 
existing facilities. 

Exception:  When the building code does not require fire alarm systems, fire 
alarm systems shall be required according to Section 13.7.  When the building code 
does require a fire alarm system, the requirements of the building code shall apply.  
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-42  Fire protection systems hose connection.  Section 13.1.5.2 

is added to read as follows:  13.1.5.2  Fire department hose connections serving 
standpipe and sprinkler systems shall be located within 20 feet of a fire apparatus 
access road, no less than 18 inches, and no more than 4 feet above grade or as 
approved by the AHJ.  Appropriate identification signs shall be provided as required 
by the AHJ.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 



§45.4-46 

45.4-15 
 

§12-45.4-43  Fire protection systems records.  Section 13.1.6 is amended 
to read as follows:  13.1.6  Detailed records documenting all systems and equipment 
inspections, testing, and maintenance shall be kept by the property owner and be 
made available upon request for review by the AHJ.  [Eff                                ] (Auth:  
HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-44  Fire protection systems authority having jurisdiction (AHJ) 

reports.  Section 13.1.6.1 is added to read as follows:  13.1.6.1  A copy of a 
system’s unsatisfactory inspection and maintenance test report shall be submitted to 
the AHJ  by the testing company within five working days after the completion of the 
test.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-45  Fire protection systems out of service.  Section 13.1.10 is 

amended to read as follows:  13.1.10  The AHJ shall be verbally notified immediately 
when any fire protection system is out of service and on restoration of service. 
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-16) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-46  Fire protection systems advanced notification.  Section 
13.1.10 is amended by adding Sections 13.1.10.1, 13.1.10.2, and 13.1.10.3 as 
follows:  13.1.10.1  The county fire department shall be given a 72-hour notification 
prior to a scheduled inspection, testing, maintenance, or retesting of any fire 
protection system (including Class I, II, and III and combined systems; automatic fire 
sprinkler systems; and other fire extinguishing systems) and fire alarm systems 
within their respective jurisdiction in the state. 

 
13.1.10.2  Failure to comply with the requirements of this section will result in 

the county fire department deeming it an invalid test.  A retest may be required at the 
testing company’s expense. 

 
13.1.10.3  The certificate of fitness holder shall immediately notify the county 

fire department of any system inspection, testing, or maintenance cancellations or 
changes to the scheduled date and time.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS 
§132-16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-16) 
 
 
 



§45.4-47 

45.4-16 

§12-45.4-47  Fire protection systems inspection, testing, and 
maintenance labeling.  Section 13.2.3 is amended by adding sections 13.2.3.3.1, 
13.2.3.3.2, 13.2.3.3.2.1, 13.2.3.3.3, 13.2.3.3.3.1, 13.2.3.3.4, 13.2.3.3.4.1, 13.2.3.3.5, 
13.2.3.3.5.1, and 13.2.3.3.5.2 as follows:  13.2.3.3.1  Inspection Label and Collar.  
An approved label and verification collar signifying successful passing of the system 
shall be provided when inspecting, testing, or maintaining any Class I, II, and III and 
combined standpipe fire extinguishing system. 

 
13.2.3.3.2  Five-Year Inspection Label 
 
13.2.3.3.2.1  Class I, II, and III and combined standpipe fire extinguishing 

systems passing a five-year inspection (annual inspection for Class II hoses) shall 
have an approved, weatherproof inspection label affixed to the fire department 
connection.  If the system does not have a fire department connection, labels shall 
be affixed to hose cabinets located on the ground floor and the top-most floor. 

(1) The label shall indicate the type of system; month and year the system 
was inspected, tested, and maintained; the certificate of fitness 
holder’s name and certificate number; and the company name, 
address, and contact information. 

(2) The label shall be yellow, at least two and one-fourth inches in width 
and three and one-fourth of an inch in length and clearly visible without 
obstructing the operation of the fire extinguishing system.   

(3) The label shall be constructed of a durable material approved by the 
AHJ. 

(4) The label shall be punched with no more than one year and one 
month. 

 
13.2.3.3.3  Verification Service Collar. 
 
13.2.3.3.3.1  The verification of service collar shall be a circular, solid of 

continuous plastic with at least a three-inch diameter hole in the center and slide 
onto each hose length approximately midway from the male and female couplings 
after the physical inspection has been completed and deemed satisfactory.  The 
verification service collar shall: 

(1) Indicate the month and year the hose was inspected; the certificate of 
fitness holder’s name and number; and company name, address, and 
contact information; and 

(2) Be constructed of other suitable materials when approved by the AHJ. 
 
13.2.3.3.4  Inoperable system sign 
 
13.2.3.3.4.1  Systems that cannot be utilized for fire fighting operations shall 

have an inoperable system sign affixed to the fire department connection.   



§45.4-48 

45.4-17 
 

(1) The sign shall have a white background with red lettering and be 
constructed of wood, metal, or plastic. 

(2) The letters shall be a minimum height of three inches and a minimum 
width of one-fourth of an inch stroke. 

(3) If the system does not have a fire department connection, inoperable 
system signs shall be affixed to hose cabinets located on the ground 
floor and the top-most floor. 

(4) The sign shall remain in place until all repairs have been made and a 
satisfactory system test is completed.  

 
13.2.3.3.5  Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance Report. 
 
13.2.3.3.5.1  An inspection, testing, and maintenance report Annex G, Exhibit 

A entitled “Class I System Five-Year Test Report,” or Annex G, Exhibit B entitled 
“Class II, Class III, and Combined Systems Test Report,” or similar report approved 
by the AHJ shall be provided to the property owner or agent within 14 days after the 
inspection, testing, and maintenance date. 

 
13.2.3.3.5.2  An electronic copy of the unsatisfactory test report shall be 

submitted to the AHJ within five working days of the inspection, testing, and 
maintenance date.  Submittals of satisfactory inspection, testing, and maintenance 
report shall be determined by the AHJ.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-
16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-16) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-48  Fire protection systems reference dates table.  Sections 
13.2.3.4.3 and 13.2.3.4.4 are added to read as follows:  13.2.3.4.3  Table 
13.2.3.4.3A, entitled “Fire Protection Systems Reference Dates” dated 7/18/2019 
may be used as a reference for applicable codes and standards in effect when the 
building was permitted. 

 
13.2.3.4.4  Fire department connection gaskets shall be replaced with new 

gaskets during the required inspection, testing, and maintenance of the system.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp: HRS §132-16; SLH 2014, Act 
165) 



§45.4-48 

45.4-18 
 

Table 13.2.3.4.3A Fire Protection Systems Reference Dates (7/18/2019) 
 

Building Permit 
Date 

 
Codes 

 
NFPA References 

All Buildings up 
to March 15, 
1988 

Ordinance 4598 (June 14, 1976) and the 
“Rules of the Fire Department City and 
County of Honolulu on Matters Related to 
the Testing of Fire Extinguishing Systems” 
(January 12, 1977).  1967 UBC Vol.1  

1. NFPA 13 

March 16, 1988 
to July 20, 1992 

1985 Uniform Fire Code (UFC) Appendix 
III-A and referenced NFPA standards 

Water-Based Systems 
1. NFPA 25 - Water-Based Fire 

Protection Systems - Not Applicable 
2. NFPA 13A - Recommended Practice 

for the Care and Maintenance of 
Sprinkler System - 1978 Edition.  
Referenced by 1985 UFC Standard, 
Appendix B. 

3. NFPA 15 - Water Spray Fixed Systems 
for Fire Protection - 1979 Edition.  As 
referenced by 1985 UFC Standard, 
#79-2 

  Other Systems 
1. NFPA 11 - Low-Expansion Foam – 

1983 Edition 
2. NFPA 11A - Medium- and High-

Expansion Foam Systems - 1983 
Edition 

3. NFPA 12 - Carbon Dioxide 
Extinguishing Systems - 1985 Edition 

4. NFPA 12A - Halon 1301 Fire 
Extinguishing Systems - 1980 Edition 

5. NFPA 17 - Dry Chemical Extinguishing 
Systems - 1985 Edition 

6. NFPA 96 - Removal of Smoke and 
Grease Laden Vapors from 
Commercial Cooking Equipment - 
1984 Edition 

 
Building Permit 

Date 
 

Codes 
 

NFPA References 
July 21, 1992 to 
October 9, 2002 

1988 Uniform Fire Code Appendix III-C 
and referenced NFPA standards 

Water-Based Systems 
1. 1988 Uniform Fire Code - Appendix III-

C (Testing Fire-Extinguishing Systems, 
Standpipes and Combination 
Systems). 

2. NFPA 13A – Recommended Practice 
for the Care and Maintenance of 
Sprinkler Systems - 1978 Edition.  As 
referenced by 1985 UFC Standards, 
Appendix B. 



§45.4-48 

45.4-19 
 

3. NFPA 15 - Water Spray Fixed Systems 
- 1988 UFC Standards (Volume II) 
which references NFPA 15, 1979 
Edition with amendments. 

 NOTE:  The 1988 UFC references the 
1985 Edition. 

Other Systems 
1. NFPA 11 - Foam Extinguishing 

Systems - 1988 UFC Standards 
(Volume II) which references NFPA 11, 
1978 Edition with amendments. 

2. NFPA 11A - Medium and High-
Expansion Foam Systems - 1988 
Edition. 

3. NFPA 12 - Carbon dioxide 
Extinguishing Systems - 1985 Edition. 

4. NFPA 12A - Halon 1301 Fire 
Extinguishing Systems - 1987 Edition. 

5. NFPA 17 - Dry Chemical Extinguishing 
Systems - 1985 Edition. 

6. NFPA 17A - Wet Chemical 
Extinguishing Systems - 1986 Edition. 

7. NFPA 96 - Removal of Smoke and 
Grease-Laden Vapors from 
Commercial Cooking Equipment - 1987 
Edition. 

 
Building Permit 

Date 
 

Codes 
 

NFPA References 
October 10, 2002 
to January 1, 2010 

1997 Uniform Fire Code Appendix III-C 
and referenced NFPA standards 

Water-Based Systems 
1. NFPA 25 - Water-Based Fire 

Protection Systems - 1997 UFC 
Appendix Standard A-III-C-1 (Volume 
II) which references and amends 
NFPA 25, 1992 Edition 

2. NFPA 15 - Water Spray Fixed 
Systems - 1997 UFC Standards 
(Volume II) which references NFPA 
15, 1990 Edition 

Other Systems 
1. NFPA 11 - Low-Expansion Foam - 

1997 UFC Standards (Volume II) 
which references NFPA  11, 1988 
Edition 

2. NFPA 11A – Medium and High-
Expansion Foam Systems - 1994 
Edition 

3. NFPA 12 - Carbon Dioxide 
Extinguishing Systems - 1993 Edition 

4. NFPA 12A - Halon 1301 Fire 
Extinguishing Systems - 1997 Edition 

5. NFPA 17 - Dry Chemical 
Extinguishing Systems - 1994 Edition 

6. NFPA 17A - Wet Chemical 
Extinguishing Systems - 1994 Edition 



§45.4-48 

45.4-20 

7. NFPA 96 - Ventilation Control and 
Fire Protection of Commercial 
Cooking Operations - 1994 Edition 

8. NFPA 2001 - Clean Agent Fire 
Extinguishing Systems - 1996 Edition 

Fire Alarm Systems 
1. NFPA 72 - Installation, Maintenance, 

and Use of Fire Protection Signaling 
Systems -1997 UFC Standard 10-2 
which references NPFA 72, 1993 
Edition 

Building Permit 
Date 

 
Codes 

 
NFPA References 

January 2, 2010 to 
July , 2014  

Hawaii State Fire Code (NFPA 1, 2006 
edition) and referenced NFPA standards 

Water-Based Systems 
1. NFPA 15 - Standard for Water Spray 

Fixed Systems for Fire Protection, 
2001 Edition 

2. NFPA 25, Standard for the Inspection, 
Testing, and Maintenance of Water-
Based Fire Protection Systems, 2002 
Edition. 

Other Systems 
1. NFPA 11 - Standard for Low-, 

Medium-, and High-Expansion Foam - 
2005 Edition 

2. NFPA 12 - Standard on Carbon 
Dioxide Extinguishing Systems, 2005 
Edition 

3. NFPA 12A - Standard on Halon 1301 
Fire Extinguishing Systems, 2004 
Edition 

4. NFPA 17 - Standard for Dry Chemical 
Extinguishing Systems, 2002 Edition 

5. NFPA 17A - Standard for Wet 
Chemical Extinguishing Systems, 
2002 Edition 

6. NFPA 96 - Standard for Ventilation 
Control and Fire Protection of 
Commercial Cooking Operations, 
2004 Edition 

7. NFPA 2001 - Standard on Clean 
Agent Fire Extinguishing Systems, 
2004 Edition 

Fire Alarm Systems 
1. NFPA 72 - National Fire Alarm Code, 

2002 Edition  



§45.4-50 

45.4-21 

 
Building Permit 

Date 
 

Codes 
 

NFPA References 
July 2014 to 
Present 

Hawaii State Fire Code (NFPA 1, 2012 
edition) and referenced NFPA standards 
 

Water-Based Systems 
1. NFPA 15 - Standard for Water Spray 

Fixed Systems for Fire Protection, 
2012 Edition 

2. NFPA 25, Standard for the Inspection, 
Testing, and Maintenance of Water-
Based Fire Protection Systems, 2011 
Edition. 

Other Systems 
1. NFPA 11 - Standard for Low-, 

Medium-, and High-Expansion Foam - 
2010 Edition 

2. NFPA 12 - Standard on Carbon 
Dioxide Extinguishing Systems, 2011 
Edition 

3. NFPA 12A - Standard on Halon 1301 
Fire Extinguishing Systems, 2009 
Edition 

4. NFPA 17 - Standard for Dry Chemical 
Extinguishing Systems, 2009 Edition 

5. NFPA 17A - Standard for Wet 
Chemical Extinguishing Systems, 
2009 Edition 

6. NFPA 96 - Standard for Ventilation 
Control and Fire Protection of 
Commercial Cooking Operations, 
2011 Edition 

7. NFPA 2001 - Standard on Clean 
Agent Fire Extinguishing Systems, 
2012 Edition 

Fire Alarm Systems 
1. NFPA 72 - National Fire Alarm Code, 

2010 Edition  
 

 
 

§12-45.4-49  Fire protection systems existing assembly occupancies.  
Section 13.3.2.8 is deleted in its entirety.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS 
§132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-50  Fire protection systems existing educational occupancies.  

Section 13.3.2.10 is deleted in its entirety.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS 
§132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3)



§45.4-51 

45.4-22 

§12-45.4-51  Fire protection systems existing health care occupancies.  
Section 13.3.2.12 is deleted in its entirety.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth: HRS  
§132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-52  Fire protection systems existing detention and correctional 

facilities.  Section 13.3.2.14 is deleted in its entirety.  [Eff                                ] 
(Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-53  Fire protection systems existing hotels and dormitories.  
Section 13.3.2.16 is deleted in its entirety.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS 
§132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-54  Fire protection systems existing residential board and care 

facilities.  Section 13.3.2.22 is deleted in its entirety.  [Eff                                ]  
(Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-55  Fire protection systems existing mercantile occupancies.  
Section 13.3.2.24 is deleted in its entirety.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS 
§132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-56  Fire protection systems high-rise buildings.  Section 

13.3.2.26.2 is deleted in its entirety.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  
(Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 

§12-45.4-57  Fire protection systems table.  Sections 13.3.3.2.1, 
13.3.3.2.2, 13.3.3.2.3, 13.3.3.2.4, 13.3.3.2.5, and 13.3.3.2.6 are added to read as 
follows:  13.3.3.2.1  Table 13.2.3.4.3A entitled “Fire Protection Systems Reference 
Dates” dated 7/18/2019 may be used as a reference for applicable codes and 
standards in effect when the building was permitted. 
 



§45.4-57 

45.4-23 

13.3.3.2.2  Pretest.  The following requirements apply to all pretesting 
procedures: 

(1) An air test shall be conducted on the piping between the fire 
department connection and the sprinkler riser; 

(2) The piping shall be filled with 25 pounds per square inch of air 
and held for 15 minutes.  No drop in pressure is allowed; 

(3) An air test need not be conducted when the piping is above ground 
and less than five feet in length; and 

(4) Automatic fire sprinkler system without a fire department connection 
does not require an air test. 

 
13.3.3.2.3  Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance Label.  It shall be unlawful 

to inspect, test, or maintain any automatic fire sprinkler system without providing an 
approved label signifying successful testing of the system. 

(1) An approved inspection, testing, and maintenance label shall be 
affixed to the fire department connection and the sprinkler riser.  
Automatic fire sprinkler systems that do not have a fire department 
connection shall have the label affixed to the riser. 

(2) The label shall indicate the type of system; month and year the system 
was tested; certificate of fitness holder’s name and number; and the 
company’s name, address, and contact information. 

(3) The label shall be clearly visible and punched with no more than one 
year and one month. 

 
13.3.3.2.4  The fire department shall be verbally notified immediately of any 

system determined to be out of service.  Systems that cannot be utilized for fire 
fighting operations shall have an inoperable system sign affixed to the fire 
department connection.  The sign shall remain in place until all repairs have been 
made and a satisfactory inspection, test, and maintenance system test is completed. 

 
13.3.3.2.5  Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance Report.  Annex G, Exhibit C, 

entitled “Automatic Fire Sprinkler System Annual Test Report,” or similar report 
approved by the AHJ shall be provided to the property owner or agent within 14 days 
after the test. 

 
13.3.3.2.6  An electronic copy of the unsatisfactory report shall be submitted 

to the AHJ within five working days.  Submittal of a satisfactory inspection, testing, 
and maintenance report will be determined by the AHJ.  [Eff                                ]  
(Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-16) 

 
 



§45.4-58 

45.4-24 

§12-45.4-58   Stationary fire pump inspection, testing, and maintenance.  
Section 13.4.8 is amended to add sections 13.4.8.1 and 13.4.8.2 as follows:  
13.4.8.1  Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance Label.  Satisfactory inspection, 
testing, and maintenance system’s tests shall have an approved inspection label 
affixed to the fire pump controller.  The label shall follow the guidelines found in the 
water-based fire extinguishing systems inspection labels, tags, and collars. 

 
13.4.8.2  Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance report.  Annex G, Exhibit D, 

entitled “Fire Pump Annual Test Report,” or similar report approved by the AHJ shall 
be provided to the property owner or agent within 14 days after the test. 
[Eff                                ]  (Auth :  RCH §4-105; ROH §1-9.1; HRS §132-2)  (Imp:  HRS 
§132) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-59 Private fire service mains inspection, testing, and 
maintenance. Section 13.5.4.2 is amended to read as follows:  13.5.4.2  A private 
fire service main installed in accordance with this code or the AHJ’s water 
department shall be inspected, tested, and maintained in accordance with NFPA 25 
and the AHJ’s water department’s inspection, testing, and maintenance standards.  
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  RCH §4-10; ROH §1-9.1; HRS §132-2)  (Imp:  HRS  
§132) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-60  Private service mains inspection, testing, and maintenance 

schedule.  Sections 13.5.4.3, 13.5.4.4, 13.5.4.5, 13.5.4.6, and 13.5.4.7 are added to 
read as follows:  13.5.4.3  Testing.  Annual inspection, testing, and maintenance 
shall be conducted by the certificate of fitness holder.  If, during use, the hydrant 
does not perform adequately, it shall be tested and, if needed, restored to its proper 
operation by a licensed certificate of fitness holder. 

 
13.5.4.4  Fire hydrants that fail the inspection, test, and maintenance shall 

have a readily visible, attached “OUT OF SERVICE” sign.  The sign shall have a 
yellow background with black letters and be constructed of wood, metal, or plastic.  
The letters shall be a minimum height of three inches and a minimum width of one-
fourth of an inch stroke.  The sign shall remain in place until all repairs have been 
made and a satisfactory hydrant inspection, test, and maintenance is completed. 

 
13.5.4.5  The fire department shall be verbally notified immediately of any fire 

hydrant determined to be out of service.  Fire hydrants deemed to be permanently 
inoperable or unusable shall be replaced.



§45.4-62 

45.4-25 

13.5.4.6  Inspection, test, and maintenance report.  An inspection, test, and 
maintenance report Annex G, Exhibit E entitled “Wet Barrel Hydrant Maintenance 
Report” or Annex G, Exhibit F entitled “Dry Barrel Hydrant Maintenance Report” or 
similar report approved by the AHJ, shall be provided to the property owner or agent 
within 14 days after the test. 

 
13.5.4.7  An electronic copy of the unsatisfactory test report shall be 

submitted to the AHJ within five working days of the test.  The AHJ shall determine if 
the submittal of a satisfactory inspection, test, and maintenance report will be 
required.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  RCH §4-105; ROH §1-9.1; HRS §132-2)  
(Imp:  HRS §132) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-61  Annual maintenance record keeping.  Section 13.6.4.3.4.1.1 
is amended to read as follows:  The tag or label, at minimum, shall entail the 
following: 

(1) Removal of the previous tag or label; 
(2) Indication of the month and year the maintenance was performed; 
(3) Type of portable fire extinguisher tested; 
(4) Certificate of fitness holder’s name and number; 
(5) Certificate of fitness holder’s company name, address, and contact 

information; 
(6) Be yellow, at least two and one-fourth of an inch in width, three and 

one-fourth of an inch in length, and clearly visible without opening any 
cabinets; 

(7) Be constructed of a durable material approved by the AHJ; 
(8) Be punched with no more than one year and one month of the date of 

service; and 
(9) Not obstruct the portable fire extinguisher classification or instructions 

for use.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  HRS 
§132-16) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-62  Extinguisher maintenance six-year internal examination 

label.  Section 13.6.4.3.6.5.3 is amended to read as follows:  13.6.4.3.6.5.3  The  
six-year internal examination label, at minimum, shall entail the following: 

(1) Removal of the previous six-year internal examination label; 
(2) Indication of the month and year the six-year internal examination was 

performed; 
(3) Certificate of fitness holder’s name and number;



§45.4-62 

45.4-26 

(4) Certificate of fitness holder’s company name, address, and contact 
information; 

(5) Type of portable fire extinguisher tested; 
(6) Be silver or white and at least two and one-fourth of an inch in width 

and three and one-fourth of an inch in length; and  
(7) Not obstruct the portable fire extinguisher classification, instructions for 

portable fire extinguisher use, or manufacturer’s labels. 
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-16) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-63  Extinguisher maintenance service collar information.  

Section 13.6.4.11.3 is amended to read as follows:  13.6.4.11.3  The verification of 
service collar shall, at minimum: 

(1) Indicate the month and year the examination was performed; 
(2) Display the certificate of fitness holder’s name and number; 
(3) Display the certificate of fitness holder’s company name, address, and 

contact information; 
(4) Be a single, circular piece of uninterrupted material forming a hole of a 

size that does not permit the collar assembly to move over the neck of 
the container, unless the valve is completely removed; and 

(5) Not interfere with the operation of the fire extinguisher. 
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-16) 

 
 
 

§12-45.4-64  Positive alarm sequence occupant notification.  Section 
13.7.1.9.4 is amended to read as follows:  13.7.1.9.4  Where permitted by Chapters 
11 through 43 of NFPA 101, a positive alarm sequence shall be permitted, provided 
it is in accordance with NFPA 72.  The following additional requirements shall also 
apply: 

(1) An automatic fire sprinkler system installed in conformance with the 
building code shall be provided throughout the building or facility; 

(2) Written fire emergency procedures and an evacuation plan for the 
building or facility shall be reviewed by the AHJ prior to approval 
testing.  The procedures and plan shall include, but not be limited to, 
immediate notification to the fire department, use of primary and 
secondary exits, and use of fire protection appliances for the 
building(s) or facility(ies); 

(3) Trained personnel shall respond to emergencies on a 24-hour basis.  
The staff shall be instructed in fire emergency procedures and the use 
and operation of in-house fire appliances.  Documentation of such 
training shall be maintained and filed on the premises; 



§45.4-69 

45.4-27 

(4) Immediate notification of the fire department shall take place upon 
activation of any fire alarm-initiating device; 

(5) The AHJ shall conduct a test of the positive alarm sequence prior to 
implementation; and 

(6) The AHJ may disapprove or rescind approval of the positive alarm 
sequence of the fire alarm system if all of the above requirements are 
not met and shall require the fire alarm system to be reprogrammed to 
meet a general alarm notification at the owner’s expense. 
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 

§12-45.4-65  New and existing lodging and rooming houses.  Sections 
13.7.2.14.1, 13.7.2.14.2, 13.7.2.14.3, and 13.7.2.14.4 are deleted in their entirety.  
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-66  Existing apartment buildings.  Sections 13.7.2.18.1, 

13.7.2.18.2, 13.7.2.18.3, and 13.7.2.18.4 are deleted in their entirety. 
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 

 
 
§12-45.4-67  Existing mercantile occupancies.  Section 13.7.2.24 is 

deleted in its entirety.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS 
§132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-68  Existing business occupancies.  Section 13.7.2.26 is deleted 

in its entirety.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 
§12-45.5-69  Existing day care and health care occupancies.  Sections 

13.7.2.6 and 13.7.2.8  are deleted in its entirety.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  
HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 



§45.4-70 

45.4-28 

§12-45.4-70  Fire alarm systems inspection, testing, and maintenance 
notification.  Section 13.7.3.2.4 is amended by adding section 13.7.3.2.4.1.1 to 
read as follows:  13.7.3.2.4.1.1  The county fire department shall be given a 72-hour 
notification prior to a scheduled inspection, testing, maintenance, or retesting of any 
fire alarm systems within their respective jurisdiction.  [Eff                                ]  
(Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-71  Fire alarm systems inspection, testing, and maintenance 

labels.  Section 13.7.3.2.4 (this was misnumbered) is amended by adding sections 
13.7.3.2.4.4.1, 13.7.3.2.4.4.2, 13.7.3.2.4.4.3, and 13.7.3.2.4.4.4 to read as follows:  
13.7.3.2.4.4.1  Labels.  Fire alarm systems passing an annual inspection, testing, 
and maintenance test shall have an approved label affixed to the annunciator panel 
or, if not present, the fire alarm system control panel in accordance with section 
13.7.3.2.  Information on the label, at a minimum, shall entail the following: 

(1) Removal of the previous label; 
(2) Indication of the month and year the satisfactory test was performed; 
(3) Certificate of fitness holder’s name and number; 
(4) Certificate of fitness holder’s company name, address, and contact 

information; 
(5) Be yellow, at least two and one-fourth of an inch in width, and three 

and one-fourth of an inch in length; 
(6) Be clearly visible without obstructing the visibility or operation of the 

annunciator panel or, if not present, fire alarm system control panel; 
and 

(7) The label shall be clearly visible and punched with no more than one 
year and one month. 

 
13.7.3.2.4.4.2  Fire alarm systems failing an annual inspection, test, and 

maintenance test shall leave the expired inspection tag or label in place on the 
annunciator panel or, if not present, the fire alarm system control panel until the 
system is repaired. 

 
13.7.3.2.4.4.3  The AHJ and the building owner shall be verbally notified 

immediately when a fire alarm system becomes inoperable.  Alternative notification 
and response plans shall be implemented after approved by the AHJ until the fire 
alarm system is fully operational. 

 
13.7.3.2.4.4.4  Annex G, Exhibit G entitled “Fire Alarm System Inspection, 

Maintenance, and Testing Report” or similar report approved by the AHJ shall be 
provided to the property owner or agent within 14 days after a satisfactory test.   



§45.4-75 

45.4-29 

[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-16)  (Imp:  HRS §132-16; SLH 2014, Act 
165) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-72  Fire alarm systems inspection, testing, and maintenance 
tag.  Section 13.7.3.2.4.7 is amended by adding as follows:  Section 13.7.3.2.4.7  
Tag.  A tag shall be placed on the fire alarm panel when tested in accordance with 
NFPA 72.  Information on the tag shall include the date of testing, testing company 
and contact information, technician performing the test and certificate of fitness 
number, and indicate satisfactory test result.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS 
§132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-73  Fire alarm systems manually activated alarm-initiating 

devices.  Section 13.7.3.3.8.4 is amended to add a new sentence at the end to read 
as follows:  The location of manual fire alarm boxes may be modified by the AHJ.  
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-74  Other fire protection systems compliance.  Section 13.8 is 

amended to read as follows:  Section 13.8.  Other Fire Protection Systems.  Where 
other fire protection systems are required to be installed by the provisions of this 
code or are installed with the approval of the AHJ as an alternative or equivalency, 
the design and installation of the system shall comply with the appropriate standards 
listed in Table 13.8.  The systems shall be inspected, tested, and maintained in 
accordance with the appropriate NFPA standard.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  
HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-75  Other fire protection systems inspection, testing, and 

maintenance label.  Section 13.8 is amended to add as follows:  Section 13.8.1 
Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance Label.  Other fire protection systems 
satisfactorily passing an inspection, testing, and maintenance test shall have an 
approved label affixed to the manual activation device or, if not present, actuator 
valve to the extinguishing agent.  The label shall, at a minimum, entail the following: 

(1) Removal of the previous label; 
(2) Indication of the type of system and the month and year the system 

was tested; 



§45.4-75 

45.4-30 

(3) Certificate of fitness holder’s name and number; 
(4) Certificate of fitness holder’s company name, address, and contact 

information; 
(5) Be yellow, at least two and one-fourth of an inch in width, and three 

and one-fourth of an inch in length; 
(6) Be constructed of a durable material approved by the AHJ; 
(7) Be clearly visible without obstructing the visibility or operation of the 

system; and  
(8) Be punched with no more than one year and one month. 

 
13.8.2  Hydrostatic Testing.  Every 12 years from the date of manufacture, 

stored pressure extinguishing agent cylinders shall be hydrostatically tested. 
 
13.8.3  Hydrostatic Testing Label.  Stored pressure extinguishing agent 

cylinders satisfactorily passing a 12-year hydrostatic test shall, at a minimum, have a 
label attached to the cylinder as follows: 

(1) Removal of the previous label; 
(2) Indication of the type of system and the month and year the system 

was tested; 
(3) Certificate of fitness holder’s name and number; 
(4) Certificate of fitness holder’s company name, address, and contact 

information; 
(5) Be yellow, at least two and one-fourth of an inch in width, and three 

and one-fourth of an inch in length; 
(6) Be constructed of a durable material approved by the AHJ; 
(7) Be clearly visible without obstructing the visibility or operation of the 

system; and 
(8) Be punched with no more than one year and one month. 

 
13.8.4  The fire department shall be verbally notified immediately of any 

systems determined to be out of service.  Systems that cannot be utilized for fire 
fighting operations shall have an inoperable system sign affixed to the manual 
activation device.  The sign shall remain in place until all repairs have been made 
and a satisfactory system test is completed. 

 
13.8.5  Inspection, testing, and maintenance report.  Annex G, Exhibit H, 

entitled “Other Fire Protection System Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance Report” 



§45.4-78 

45.4-31 

or similar report approved by the AHJ shall be provided to the property owner or 
agent within 14 days after the test. 

 
13.8.6  Inspection Report.  An electronic copy of the unsatisfactory test report 

shall be submitted to the AHJ within five working days.  The AHJ shall determine if 
the submittal of a satisfactory test report will be required. 

 
13.8.7  Table 13.2.3.4.3A entitled “Fire Protection Systems Reference Dates” 

dated 7/18/2019 may be used as a reference for applicable codes and standards in 
effect when the building was permitted.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  RCH §4-
105; ROH §1-9.1; HRS §132-2)  (Imp:  HRS §132) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-76  Means of egress application.  Section 14.1 is amended to 

read as follows:  14.1 Means of egress application.  Means of egress in existing 
buildings shall comply with this code and NFPA 101, Life Safety Code.  The 
provisions of this chapter do not apply to new construction.  For new construction, 
see the building code.  Existing buildings shall be maintained to meet the 
requirements of the building code at the time the structure was built, unless 
specifically indicated for existing facilities.  Provisions in this chapter are provided for 
maintenance purposes. 

Exception:  Stairway marking requirements set forth in Section 10.12.3 shall 
apply to new and existing construction.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-
3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-77  Screen door assemblies and storm door assemblies.  
Section 14.5.1.4 is amended by adding an exception at the end to read as follows:  
Exception:  Double-acting screen doors used in conjunction with exit doors having 
panic hardware in school cafetoriums do not need to comply with this provision.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-78  Locks, latches, and alarm devices.  Section 14.5.2.13 is 
added to read as follows:  14.5.2.13  In accordance with the building code, security 
gates may be permitted across corridors or passageways in school buildings if there 
is a readily visible durable sign on or adjacent to the gate stating “THIS GATE IS TO 
REMAIN SECURED IN THE OPEN POSITION WHENEVER THIS BUILDING IS IN 
USE.”  The sign shall be in letters no less than one inch high on a contrasting 



§45.4-78 

45.4-32 

background.  The use of this exception may be revoked by the building official for 
due cause.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-79  Allowable occupant load increases.  Section 14.8.1.3.1 is 

amended to read as follows:  14.8.1.3.1  The occupant load in any building or portion 
thereof shall be allowed to be increased from the occupant load established for the 
given use in accordance with the building code where all other requirements of this 
code are also met based on such increased occupant load.  Occupant load 
increases shall be approved by the AHJ.  The fire department shall be notified of any 
increase in occupant load.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  
HRS §132-3)   

 
 

§12-45.4-80 Egress capacity.  Section 14.8.3.1 is amended to read as 
follows:  14.8.3.1  Egress capacity for approved components of means of egress 
shall be based on the capacity factors shown in the building code.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-81  Special signs at elevators.  Section 14.14.8 is amended to add 

as follows:  14.14.8.4  At all elevator locations on each floor level above an below 
the floor of exit discharge, there shall be displayed in a conspicuous location a sign 
reading:  “IN CASE OF FIRE, USE EXIT STAIRWAYS.  DO NOT USE 
ELEVATORS.”  Lettering shall be no less than 5/8-inch high. 

Exception:  Signs at least 2-3/4 inches X 2-1/4 inches in overall size with 
legible wording and approved by the AHJ may be used as an alternate and shall be 
affixed at each elevator call button assembly. 

Elevator service companies shall have their name and telephone number in 
the elevator key box.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS 
§132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-82  Water supply during construction.  Section 16.4.3.1.1 is 

amended to read as follows:  16.4.3.1.1  A water supply for fire protection, either 
temporary or permanent, shall be made available as soon as combustible material is 
present.  [Eff                                ] (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 



§45.4-87 

45.4-33 

§12-45.4-83  Required access.  Section 18.2.3.1.3 is amended to read as 
follows:  18.2.3.1.3  The provisions of 18.2.3.1 through 18.2.3.2.2.1 shall be 
permitted to be modified by the AHJ where any of the following conditions exists: 

(1) No more than two one- and two-family dwellings protected by an 
approved automatic sprinkler system in accordance with Section 13.1; 

(2)  No more than two existing one- and two-family dwellings; 
(3)  Private garages having an area not exceeding 1,000 square feet; 
(4) Carports having an area not exceeding 1,000 square feet; 
(5) Agricultural buildings having an area not exceeding 1,000 square feet; 

and 
(6) Sheds and other detached buildings having an area not exceeding 

1,000 square feet.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  
(Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-84  Fire department access road widths.  Section 18.2.3.5.1.1 is 

amended to read as follows: 18.2.3.5.1.1  Fire department access roads shall have 
an unobstructed width of no less than 20 feet (6.1 meters) or as approved by the 
AHJ.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-85  Fire department access road vertical clearance.  Section 

18.2.3.5.1.2 is amended to read as follows:  18.2.3.5.1.2  Fire department access 
roads shall have an unobstructed vertical clearance of no less than 13 feet six 
inches (4.1 meters) or as approved by the AHJ.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  
HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.4-86  Fire department access roads bridges, or culverts.  Section 

18.2.3.5.5.1 is amended to read as follows: 18.2.3.5.5.1  When a bridge or culvert is 
required to be used as part of a fire apparatus access road, it shall be constructed 
and maintained in accordance with county requirements.  [Eff                                ]  
(Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-87  Fire department access roads bridges, or culverts live 
loads.  Section 18.2.3.5.5.2 is amended to read as follows:  18.2.3.5.5.2  The bridge 
or culvert shall be designed for a live load sufficient to carry the imposed loads of a 
fire apparatus.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3)



§45.4-88 

45.4-34 

§12-45.4-88  Water supply fire flow.  Section 18.3.1 is amended to read as 
follows:  18.3.1  An approved water supply capable of supplying the required fire 
flow for fire protection shall be provided to all premises upon which facilities, 
buildings, or portions of buildings are hereafter constructed or moved into the 
jurisdiction.  The approved water supply shall be in accordance with Section 18.4.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-89  Minimum number of fire hydrants for fire flow.  Section 
18.5.4.1 is amended to read as follows:  18.5.4.1.  The minimum number of fire 
hydrants needed to deliver the required fire flow for new buildings in accordance with 
Section 18.4 shall be determined in accordance with Section 18.5.4 or as approved 
by the AHJ.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-90  Hydrants out of service.  Section 18.5.9.1 is amended by 
adding a paragraph to read as follows:  The AHJ shall be notified whenever any fire 
hydrant is placed out of service or returned to service.  Owners of private property 
required to have hydrants shall maintain hydrant records of approval, testing, and 
maintenance.  Records shall be made available for review by the AHJ upon request. 
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-91  Nonmetallic containers.  Section 19.2.1.2.1 is amended by 
adding an exception at the end to read as follows: 

Exception:  Containers used by one- and two-family dwellings for refuse 
pickup.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 

 
 
§12-45.4-92  Flame-retardant requirements.   Section 20.1.2.1 is amended 

by adding a new sentence at the end to read as follows:  A record of fire-resistant 
treatment shall be kept on the premises for review by the AHJ.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 

 
§12-45.4-93  Means of egress floor plan.  Section 20.1.5.1.4 is added to 

read as follows:  20.1.5.1.4  A floor plan indicating the seating arrangements, and 
location and width of exit ways and aisles shall be submitted to the AHJ for review 



§45.4-95 

45.4-35 

for places of assembly with an occupant load of 300 or more persons.  A copy of the 
plan shall be kept on display on the premises.  An exit plan shall also be posted in a 
conspicuous location near the main entrance and maintained in a legible condition 
by the building owner or agent.  The building owner or agent shall be responsible for 
the inspection before each show or event of all required means of egress from each 
part of the building, including stairways, egress doors, and any panic hardware 
installed thereon, aisles, and corridors.  Passageways and similar elements of the 
means of egress shall be available for immediate use and free of obstructions before 
each show or event.  The building owner or agent shall inform patrons of required 
exit locations before each show or event in places of assembly with an occupant 
load of 300 or more persons.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  
HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.4-94  Means of egress inspection overcrowding.  Section 
20.1.5.1.5 is added to read as follows:  20.1.5.1.5  Authority to Stop Performance.  
Overcrowding and admittance of persons beyond the approved capacity of a place 
of assembly are prohibited.  The AHJ, upon finding overcrowding conditions or 
obstructions in aisles, passageways, or other means of egress or upon finding a 
condition which constitutes an imminent danger, is authorized to cause the 
performance, presentation, spectacle, or entertainment to be stopped until such 
conditions or obstructions are corrected.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS 
§132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.4-95  Assembly open flame devices and pyrotechnics general.  

Section 20.1.5.3, Item (1) is amended to read as follows: 
(1) Pyrotechnic special effect devices shall be permitted to be used on 

stages before proximate audiences for ceremonial or religious 
purposes as part of a demonstration in exhibits or as part of a 
performance, provided that all of the following criteria are met: 
(a) Precautions satisfactory to the AHJ are taken to prevent ignition 

of any combustible material; 
(b) Use of the pyrotechnic device complies with Section 65.3; 
(c) Use of pyrotechnic devices indoors shall only be allowed in 

buildings protected throughout with automatic fire sprinklers; 
and 

(d) Use of pyrotechnic devices indoors shall only be allowed in 
buildings where all fire and life safety systems are deemed 
appropriate as determined by the AHJ.  [Eff                                ] 
(Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 



§45.4-96 

45.4-36 

§12-45.4-96  Assembly open flame devices and pyrotechnics fire 
prevention.  Section 20.1.5.3 is amended by adding paragraphs (7) and (8) to read 
as follows: 

(7) When approved by the AHJ, open-flame devices may be used by 
performers, provided adequate precautions are taken to prevent 
ignition of combustible materials.  Such devices shall not be used, 
except in areas protected by an automatic sprinkler system.  In 
addition, a minimum 20 foot clearance to the viewing audience shall be 
provided or an approved barrier shall be erected to prevent accidental 
release onto the viewing audience.  Performances with fire shall 
provide a plan approved by the AHJ.  The plan shall address fuel use 
and storage, device ignition, device usage, and extinguishment 
procedures. 

(8) Portable heating equipment, not flue-connected, shall be allowed only 
as follows:  Equipment fueled by small heat sources, which can be 
readily extinguished by water, such as candles or alcohol-burning 
equipment (including solid alcohol), may be used provided adequate 
precautions approved by the AHJ are taken to prevent ignition of any 
combustible materials.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)   
(Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 

§12-45.4-97  Use of school facilities for sleeping.  Section 20.2.2.6 is 
added to read as follows:  20.2.2.6  Use of Educational Facilities for Sleeping.  
Educational occupancies that allow sleeping on a temporary basis shall: 

(1) Have the sleeping location approved by the AHJ; 
(2) Notify the AHJ no less than five days prior to the event; 
(3) Prohibit smoking and open flames and shall provide one of the 

following: 
(a) Smoke alarms in the designated sleeping area.  When the 

facility is provided with a fire alarm system, the smoke alarms 
shall be connected to the fire alarm system; and 

(b) A fire watch approved by the AHJ.  [Eff                                ] 
(Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.5-98  Emergency egress drills in schools.  Section 20.2.4.2.3, 

paragraph (1) is amended by adding a new exception at the end to read as follows:  



§45.4-103 

45.4-37 

Exception:  Fire drills at high schools, middle schools, and intermediate 
schools shall be conducted at least quarterly during school sessions.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.5-99  Manufactured housing.  Section 20.11.5 is deleted in its 

entirety.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 
§12-45.5-100  Tents and temporary membrane structures.  Section 25.1.1 

is amended by adding an exception at the end to read as follows: 
Exception:  The provisions of this section do not apply to tents and temporary 

membrane structures having an area 700 square feet or less.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.5-101  Physical protection for outside aboveground tanks.  
Section 42.3.3.7.2 is amended to read as follows:  42.3.3.7.2  Guard posts or other 
approved means shall be provided to protect tanks and appurtenances that are 
subject to vehicular damage in accordance with section 60.5.1.9.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.5-102  Emergency electrical disconnect signs.  Section 42.5.7 is 
amended by adding the following sentences at the end as follows:  Such devices 
shall be distinctly labeled as “EMERGENCY FUEL SHUTOFF DEVICE.”  Signs shall 
be provided in approved locations.  The signs shall be in red letters on a white 
background and no less than two inches high with a one-fourth inch stroke.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.5-103  Fuel dispensing age limitation.  Section 42.7.1 is amended 
to read as follows:  42.7.1.1  Age Limitation.  Persons under the eligible age to 
obtain a driver’s license are prohibited from dispensing fuel.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 



§45.4-104 

45.4-38 

§12-45.5-104  Fuel dispensing prohibition of foreign objects.  Section 
42.7.1 is amended to read as follows:  42.7.1.2  Foreign Objects.  The placement of 
a foreign object(s) that allows the fuel-dispensing lever to remain in the open 
position is prohibited at all times.  [Eff                           ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  
HRS §132-3) 

 
 

§12-45.5-105  Fuel dispensing signs.  Section 42.7.2.6.4 is amended to 
read as follows:  42.7.2.6.4  Signs.  Warning signs shall be conspicuously posted in 
the dispensing area and incorporate the following or equivalent wording: 

 
WARNING: 

It is unlawful and dangerous to dispense gasoline into unapproved containers. 
No smoking. 
Stop motor. 

No filling of portable containers in or on a motor vehicle. 
Place container on ground before filling. 

Discharge your static electricity before fueling by touching a metal surface away 
from the nozzle. 

Do not re-enter your vehicle while gasoline is pumping. 
If a fire starts, do not remove nozzle — back away immediately. 

Do not allow individuals under licensed age to use the pump. 
The placement of a foreign object(s) that allows the fuel-dispensing lever to 

remain in the open position is prohibited at all times. 
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 

 
§12-45.5-106  Attended self-service fuel dispensing prohibition of 

foreign objects .  Section 42.7.4 is amended to read as follows:  42.7.4.3.2  The 
placement of a foreign object that allows the fuel-dispensing lever to remain in the 
open position is prohibited at all times.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-
3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.5-107  Unattended self-service fuel dispensing prohibition of 

foreign objects.  Section 42.7.5.4.1 is added to read as follows:  42.7.5.4.1  The 
placement of a foreign object that allows the fuel-dispensing lever to remain in the 
open position is prohibited at all times.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-
3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 



§45.4-111 

45.4-39 

 
§12-45.5-108  Flammable finish spray booth inspection, testing, and 

maintenance.  Section 43.1.7 is amended to read as follows:  43.1.7.1.4  
Flammable finishing spray booth and spray room installed in accordance with this 
code shall be inspected, tested, and maintained in accordance with NFPA 17, 25, 
33, 34, and 2001. 

 
43.1.7.1.5  Inspection tag, label, and collar.  Refer to the chapter on automatic 

fire sprinklers and other fire protection systems. 
 
43.1.7.1.6  Inspection Report.  Refer to the chapter on automatic fire 

sprinklers and other fire protection systems for requirements.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  Revised Charter of Honolulu [RCH] §4-105; 
Revised Ordinances of Honolulu [ROH] §1-9.1; HRS §132-2)  (Imp:  HRS §132) 
 
 
 

§12-45.5-109  Commercial cooking extinguishing system acceptance 
test.  Section 50.4.3 is amended by adding as follows:  50.4.3.4.  Prior to the 
commencement of initial cooking operations, a satisfactory acceptance test of the 
system shall be made in accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions.  The 
acceptance test shall be of an approved method and witnessed by the AHJ. 
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.5-110  Inoperable commercial cooking extinguishing or exhaust 
system.  Section 50.5.1.6.1 is amended to read as follows:  Where the fire 
extinguishing system or exhaust system is inoperable, the AHJ shall be verbally 
notified immediately.  Where systems are tested as unsatisfactory, the systems’ 
owner or owner’s representative shall be notified in writing of the impairment.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth: RCH §4-105; ROH §1-9.1; HRS §132-2)  (Imp:  
HRS §132) 

 
 
 
§12-45.5-111  Commercial cooking inspection, testing, and maintenance 

reference table.  Section 50.5.2.2 is amended to read as follows:  50.5.2.2.1  A list 
of the appropriate commercial cooking extinguishing systems are found in Table 
13.2.3.4.3.A entitled “Fire Protection Systems Reference Dates.”  Other systems 
shall be approved by the AHJ.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  RCH §4-105; ROH 
§1-9.1; HRS §132-2)  (Imp:  HRS §132)



§45.4-112 

45.4-40 

§12-45.5-112  Commercial cooking extinguishing system inspection, 
testing, and maintenance reports.  Section 50.5.2 is amended by adding Sections 
50.5.2.8.2 and 50.5.2.8.3 to read as follows: 

 
50.5.2.8.2 Annex G, Exhibit I entitled “Commercial Cooking Extinguishing 

System Inspection, Testing, and Maintenance Report” or similar report approved by 
the AHJ shall be provided to the property owner or agent within 14 days after the 
test. 

 
50.5.2.8.3  An electronic copy of the unsatisfactory test report shall be 

submitted to the AHJ within five working days.  The AHJ shall determine if the 
submittal of a satisfactory test report will be required.  [Eff                                ]  
(Auth:  RCH §4-105; ROH §1-9.1; HRS §132-2)  (Imp:  HRS §132) 

 
 
 
§12-45.5-113  Commercial cooking extinguishing system inspection, 

testing, and maintenance tag.  50.5.3.3 is amended by adding Section 50.5.3.3.3 
to read as follows:  50.5.3.3.3  Inspection tag.  Commercial cooking extinguishing 
systems passing an inspection shall have an approved tag affixed to the hood’s 
extinguishing system piping near the manual activation device.  The tag or label, at a 
minimum, shall entail the following: 

(1) Removal of the previous label; 
(2) Type of system tested; 
(3) Month and year the system was tested; 
(4) Certificate of fitness holder’s name and number; 
(5) Certificate of fitness holder’s company name, address, and contact 

information; 
(6) Be yellow, at least two and one-fourth of an inch in width, and three 

and one-fourth of an inch in length without any visual obstructions; 
(7) Be constructed of a durable material approved by the AHJ; and 
(8) Be punched with no more than one year and one month. 

[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  RCH §4-105; ROH §1-9.1; HRS §132-
2)  (Imp:  HRS §132) 

 
 
 

§12-45.5-114  Hazardous materials management plan (HMMP) on site.  
Section 60.1.6 is amended by adding Section 60.1.6.4 to read as follows:  The 
HMMP shall be made available on site.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-
3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 



§45.4-120 

45.4-41 

§12-45.5-115  Hazardous materials protection from vehicles.  Section 
60.5.1.9.2, item (2) is amended to read as follows: 

(2) They shall be spaced no more than three feet between posts on 
center.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 

§12-45.5-116  Fireworks removal.  Section 65.1 is amended by adding 
Section 65.1.3 to read as follows:  65.1.3  The AHJ is authorized to require the 
owner to remove, at the expense of the owner, all fireworks offered for sale, stored, 
or possessed in violation of Chapter 65 or other applicable state or county laws or 
rules.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.5-117  Fireworks regulation.  Section 65.1 is amended by adding 

Section 65.1.4 to read as follows:  65.1.4  Importation, storage, possession, sale, 
purchase, transfer, public displays, and discharge of fireworks shall be in 
accordance with Chapter 132D, HRS.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-
3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.5-118  Fireworks permits.  Section 65.9.2.2 is deleted in its entirety.  
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.5-119  Consumer fireworks retail sales.  Section 65.10 is added to 
read as follows:  Section 65.10  Retail sales of consumer fireworks in new and 
existing buildings, structures, and facilities shall comply with the requirements of 
Chapter 6 and 7 of NFPA 1124, 2013 Edition.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS 
§132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 
 
 
§12-45.5-120  Flammable and combustible liquid tank permits.  Section 

66.1.5 is amended to read as follows:  66.1.5  Permits and Plans.  Permits, where 
required, shall comply with Section 1.12, and applications for permits shall be 
submitted with a proposed site plan.  [Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  
(Imp:  HRS §132-3) 

 



§45.4-121 

45.4-42 

§12-45.5-121  Unpermitted flammable and combustible liquid tank 
prohibition.  Section 66.1.5 is amended by adding Section 66.1.5.1 to read as 
follows:  66.1.5.1.  Filling Unpermitted Tanks Prohibited.  No fuel supplier shall fill or 
cause to be filled an unpermitted storage tank.  It is the supplier’s responsibility to 
request and be presented with a copy of the approved permit issued by the AHJ.  
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

§12-45.5-122  Underground flammable and combustible liquid tank 
closure in place.  Section 66.21.7.4.3.3 is amended to read as follows: 
66.21.7.4.3.3  Underground Tanks Permanently Closed in Place.  Underground 
tanks may be permanently closed in place only if a certified structural engineer 
confirms that the removal of the tank will jeopardize the structural integrity of the 
existing building.  An affidavit attesting to this determination shall be submitted to the 
AHJ prior to taking permanent closure measures.  Tanks permanently closed in 
place shall meet the following requirements: 

(1) Applicable AHJs shall be notified; 
(2) A safe workplace shall be maintained throughout the prescribed 

activities; 
(3) Flammable and combustible liquids and residues shall be removed 

from the tank, appurtenances, and piping and disposed of in 
accordance with regulatory requirements and industry practices using 
a written procedure; 

(4) The tank, appurtenances, and piping shall be made safe by purging 
them of flammable vapors or inerting the potential explosive 
atmosphere. Confirmation that the atmosphere in the tank is safe shall 
be by testing of the atmosphere using a combustible gas indicator if 
purging, or an oxygen meter if inerting, at intervals in accordance with 
written procedures; 

(5) Access to the tank shall be made by careful excavation to the top of 
the tank; 

(6) Exposed piping, gauging and tank fixtures, and other appurtenances, 
except the vent, shall be disconnected and removed; 

(7) The tank shall be completely filled with an inert solid material; 
(8) The tank vent and remaining underground piping shall be capped or 

removed; 
(9) The tank excavation shall be backfilled; and  
(10) A record of tank size and location and date of permanent closure shall 

be retained by the owner and a copy submitted to the AHJ.   
[Eff                                ]  (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3)



§45.4-123 

45.4-43 

§12-45.5-123  Unpermitted liquefied petroleum gases and natural gases 
tank prohibition.  Section 69.1.2 is amended by adding Section 69.1.2.1 to read as 
follows:  69.1.2.1.  Filling Unpermitted Tanks Prohibited.  No fuel supplier shall fill or 
cause to be filled an unpermitted storage tank.  It is the supplier’s responsibility to 
request and be presented with a copy of the approved permit issued by the AHJ.” 
[Eff                                ] (Auth:  HRS §132-3)  (Imp:  HRS §132-3) 
 
 
 

3.   The repeal of Chapter 12-45.3 and the adoption of Chapter 12-45.4 shall 
take effect ten days after its filing with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 
 
 

I certify that the foregoing are copies of the rules drafted in the Ramseyer 
format, pursuant to the requirements of section 91-4.1, HRS, which were adopted on 
January 12, 1982, and filed with the Office of the Lieutenant Governor. 
 
 
 
 

   Manuel P. Neves, Chair 
   State Fire Council 

 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
Deputy Attorney General 
 



III.  New Business – Before Public Hearing 

C. Discussion and Action on Proposed Amendments 
to HAR Title 16 Chapter 71, Certified Public 
Accountants and Public Accountants, promulgated 
by Department of Commerce and Consumer 
Affairs 

  



JetaimeA
Received









JetaimeA
Received









1 

 

"HAWAII ADMINISTRATIVE RULES 

 

TITLE 16 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

 

CHAPTER 71 

 

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 

 

 Subchapter 1  General Provisions 

 

§16-71-1 Objective  

§16-71-2 Biennial renewal; continuing professional education in ethics or 

professional conduct 

§16-71-3 Notification and filing of names and addresses and changes  

§16-71-4 Evidence of authority to practice  

§16-71-4.5 Minimum insurance requirements for a professional corporation  

 

 Subchapter 2  Definitions  

 

§16-71-8 Definitions  

§16-71-9 Repealed  

§16-71-10 Repealed  

 

 Subchapter 3  License of Certified Public Accountant  

 

§16-71-14 Issuance  

§16-71-15 Application for license  

§16-71-16 Competence, trustworthiness, and fairness (references)  

§16-71-17 Education  

§16-71-18 Examination  

§16-71-19 Computer-based examination  

§16-71-19.1 Examination misconduct  

§16-71-20 Repealed  

§16-71-21 Experience  

§16-71-22 Knowledge of laws and rules 

 Subchapter 4  Permit to Practice  

 

JetaimeA
Received



2 

 

§16-71-24 Permit to practice  

§16-71-25 Repealed  

§16-71-26 Control and reporting  

§16-71-27 Temporary permit to practice  

 

 Subchapter 5  Continuing Professional Education  

 

§16-71-31 Basic concept  

§16-71-32 Persons covered  

§16-71-33 Basic requirements of study hours  

§16-71-34 Hours which qualify  

§16-71-35 Deficiency in hours and carryover hours  

§16-71-36 Program classifications  

§16-71-37 Requirements for group programs  

§16-71-38 Requirements for individual self-study programs  

§16-71-39 Sponsors whose programs automatically qualify  

§16-71-40 Repealed  

§16-71-41 Requirements for approval by the board  

§16-71-42 Repealed  

§16-71-43 Duration of approval  

§16-71-44 Repealed  

§16-71-45 Information requirements  

§16-71-46 Exceptions  

§16-71-47 Certification to other jurisdiction  

§16-71-48 Exception for temporary permits  

 

 Subchapter 6  Repealed  

 

§16-71-52 Repealed  

§16-71-53 Repealed  

§16-71-54 Repealed  

§16-71-55 Repealed  

§16-71-56 Repealed  

§16-71-57 Repealed  

 

 Subchapter 7  Rules of Conduct  

§16-71-61 Independence, integrity, and objectivity  

§16-71-62 Competence and technical standards  

§16-71-63 Responsibilities to clients  

§16-71-64 Other responsibilities and practices  



3 

 

 Subchapter 8  Practice and Procedure  

 

§16-71-66 Administrative practice and procedure  

 

 Subchapter 9  Oral Testimony  

 

§16-71-69 Oral testimony  

 

 

 

SUBCHAPTER l 

 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 §16-71-1  Objective.  This chapter has been adopted by the board of public 

accountancy, hereafter referred to as ["board,"] "board", and is intended to clarify 

chapter 466, Hawaii Revised Statutes, and to implement the administration thereof 

to the end that chapter 466, HRS, may be best effectuated and the public interest 

most effectively served.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-1, 6/25/81; am and comp; 

6/8/84; comp 10/23/87; comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; comp 1/30/10; 

comp 2/13/12; am and comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS 

§466-4) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-2  Biennial renewal; continuing professional education in ethics 

or professional conduct.  (a) Each license of a certified public accountant and a 

public accountant shall be renewed biennially on or before December 31 of each 

odd-numbered year by submitting an application, paying a renewal fee, and attesting 

that the applicant has completed at least four hours of continuing professional 

education in ethics or professional conduct. 

 (b) Each permit to practice of a certified public accountant or public 

accountant shall be renewed biennially on or before December 31 of each 

odd-numbered year by submitting an application, paying a renewal fee, and 

complying with the continuing professional education requirements in section 

16-71-33. 

 (c) Each firm permit to practice shall be renewed biennially on or before 

December 31 of each odd-numbered year by submitting an application and paying a 

renewal fee.  [Eff 11/21/74; ren §1.02, 3/6/80; am and ren §16-71-2, 6/25/81; am 

and comp 6/8/84, am and comp 10/23/87; comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 



4 

 

1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; comp                                 ] (Auth:  

HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §§466-4, 466-5, 466-6)  

 

 

 

 §16-71-3  Notification and filing of names and addresses and changes. 

The current mailing address of each certified public accountant, registered public 

accountant, public accounting firm, and permit holder shall be registered with the 

board.  The board shall be immediately notified in writing, of all changes.  [Eff 

1/1/74; ren §1.03, 3/6/80; am and ren §16-71-3, 6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; am 

and comp 10/23/87; comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; comp 1/30/10; 

comp 2/13/12; comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §466-4)  

 

 

 

 §16-71-4  Evidence of authority to practice.  Each permit holder and 

public accounting firm shall at all times display evidence of the authority to practice, 

together with the certificate or registration and other evidence of current validation, 

in  the permit holder's and public accounting firm's place of business. [Eff 1/1/74; 

ren §1.05, 11/21/74; ren §1.04, 3/6/80; am and ren §16-71-4, 6/25/81; am and comp 

6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; comp 

1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp: 

HRS §§466-4, 466-7) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-4.5  Minimum insurance requirements for a professional 

corporation.  (a) Pursuant to section 415A-11, HRS, a professional accounting 

corporation may provide security for professional responsibility by procuring errors 

and omissions insurance or a surety bond issued by an insurance company, or any 

combination thereof, as the corporation may elect. 

 (b) The minimum amount of errors and omissions insurance or surety 

bond issued by an insurance company for a professional accounting corporation 

shall be $100,000 for each shareholder; provided that the minimum amount for each 

professional accounting corporation shall not be less than $250,000.  [Eff and comp 

1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  

HRS §§415A-11, 466-4) 

 

 

 



5 

 

SUBCHAPTER 2 

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

 §16-71-8  Definitions.  As used in this chapter: 

 "Continuing professional education" or "CPE" means a formal course or 

program of learning from a sponsor approved by the board as provided in this 

chapter. 

 "Incidental to a person's practice in such other state or country", as used in 

section 466-7(c)(4), HRS, means services rendered in this State by a non-licensee 

for work performed for a client outside the State, such as the audit of a Hawaii 

subsidiary of an out-of-state parent corporation or an audit of a Hawaii branch or 

division of an out-of-state partnership, joint venture, or individual proprietorship. 

 "Not in a public accounting practice" or "not in public practice" means the 

status of a certified public accountant licensed under section 466-5, HRS, or a public 

accountant licensed under section 466-6, HRS, or a public accounting firm under 

section 466-7, HRS, that: 

 (1) Does not have a permit to practice under chapter 466, HRS, or this 

chapter; or 

 (2) Is not engaged in any form of public accounting in this State. 

 "Public accounting practice" or "public practice" means performing, offering 

to perform, or holding oneself out as being able to perform for a fee one or more 

types of services involved in the practice of public accountancy by a certified public 

accountant licensed under section 466-5, HRS, who has a permit to practice under 

section 466-7, HRS, and section 16-71-24; a public accountant licensed under 

section 466-6, HRS, who has a permit to practice under section 466-7, HRS, and 

section 16-71-24; or by a public accounting firm that has a permit to practice under 

section 466-7, HRS, and section 16-71-24, including but not limited to: 

 (1) A sole proprietor or sole practitioner engaged in public accounting 

practice; 

 (2) A partner in a domestic or foreign general, limited, or limited 

liability partnership of certified public accountants or public 

accountants, or a combination of both; 

 (3) A principal in a domestic or foreign professional accounting 

corporation; 

 (4) A member of a domestic or foreign limited liability company; 

 (5) A staff employee of a domestic or foreign public accounting firm as 

defined in section 466-3, HRS; 

 (6) A domestic or foreign professional accounting corporation; 



6 

 

 (7) A domestic or foreign general, limited, or limited liability 

partnership of certified public accountants or public accountants, or a 

combination of both; or 

 (8) A domestic or foreign limited liability company.  [Eff 1/1/74; am 

and ren §16-71-8, 6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; am and comp 

10/23/87; comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; am and comp 

1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; am and comp                                 ] (Auth:  

HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §§466-4, 466-5, 466-6)  

 

 

 

 §16-71-9  Repealed. 

 

 

 

 §16-71-10  Repealed. 

 

 

 

SUBCHAPTER 3 

 

LICENSE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT 

 

 §16-71-14  Issuance.  A person shall be entitled to the issuance of a license 

of certified public accountant upon application to the board and upon the 

satisfactory fulfillment of the requirements set forth in section 466-5(a), HRS.  [Eff 

1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-14, 6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; comp 10/23/87; comp 

2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §466-5) 

  

 

 

 §16-71-15  Application for license.  After satisfactorily fulfilling the 

requirements of section 466-5(a), HRS, an application for a license of certified 

public accountant shall be filed in accordance with deadline dates established by the 

board and be accompanied by a fee as provided by the department of commerce and 

consumer affairs in chapter 16-53.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-15, 6/25/81; am 

and comp 6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; comp 2/22/94; am and comp 6/3/95; 

comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; comp                                  ] 

(Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §§466-5, 466-8) 



7 

 

 §16-71-16  Competence, trustworthiness, and fairness (references).  

Each applicant for a license of a certified public accountant shall submit three letters 

of reference, from persons not related to the applicant, attesting to the applicant's 

competence, trustworthiness, and fairness.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-16, 

6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; comp 10/23/87; comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 

1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; comp                                 ] (Auth:  

HRS §466-4) (Imp: HRS §§466-4, 466-5) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-17  Education.  (a) An applicant for a license of certified public 

accountant shall:  

 (1) Present satisfactory evidence that the applicant has received a 

baccalaureate degree from a university, college, or other four-year 

institution of learning accredited by a regional or national accrediting 

agency or association recognized by the Secretary of Education 

under the requirements of 20 United States Code section 1099b, as 

amended; or  

 (2) Present satisfactory evidence that the applicant has received a 

baccalaureate or comparable degree from a foreign or U.S. 

university, college, or other four-year institution of learning and 

provide evidence that the baccalaureate or comparable degree 

qualifies the applicant for acceptance for an advanced degree at an 

accredited university, college, or other four-year institution of 

learning as specified in paragraph (1). 

 (b) An applicant who passed the examination prior to December 31, 

2000, or who earned conditional credits prior to December 31, 2000 and 

subsequently passed the examination before the conditional credits expired, shall, in 

addition to meeting the requirements in subsection (a), present evidence of 

satisfactory completion of at least thirty semester hours of upper division or 

graduate level study comprised of such subjects as:  

 (1) Accounting and auditing;  

 (2) Taxation;  

 (3) Management services;  

 (4) Computer science;  

 (5) Economics;  

 (6) Business law;  

 (7) Functional fields of business (e.g., finance, production, marketing, 

personnel relations, business organization, and business 

management); or 



8 

 

 (8) Other business related subjects as approved by the board, at  an 

accredited university, college, or four-year institution of learning as 

specified in subsection (a). 

 The baccalaureate degree and the thirty semester hours of additional study 

shall have included a minimum of eighteen semester hours of upper division or 

graduate level accounting and auditing subjects.  

 In the event the additional studies of thirty semester hours are completed 

before the baccalaureate degree is conferred, the applicant shall furnish the board a 

letter from the university, college, or four-year institution of learning indicating that 

the additional studies were not counted toward the baccalaureate degree.  

 (c) An applicant who did not earn conditional credits prior to December 

31, 2000 and who passed the examination after December 31, 2000, shall, in 

addition to meeting the requirements in subsection (a), present evidence of 

satisfactory completion of at least one hundred fifty semester hours of college 

education which shall include: 

 (1) At least twenty-four semester hours in accounting courses, of which 

at least eighteen semester hours are upper division or graduate level 

accounting courses, including without limitation courses in: 

  (A) Financial accounting; 

  (B) Auditing; 

  (C) Taxation; and 

  (D) Managerial accounting; and 

 (2) At least twenty-four semester hours in upper division or graduate 

level accounting or non-accounting business-related courses 

including without limitation courses in: 

  (A) Economics; 

  (B) Legal and social environment of business; 

  (C) Business law; 

  (D) Marketing; 

  (E) Finance; 

  (F) Organizational, group, and individual behavior; 

  (G) Quantitative applications in business; 

  (H) Communication skills; 

  (I) Business ethics; 

  (J) Globalization; 

  (K) Total-quality management; 

  (L) Computer science; 

  (M) Human relations; or 

  (N) Other business related courses. 



9 

 

 (d) Each applicant shall present evidence satisfactory to the board that 

the requirements provided in section 466-5(f), or 466-5.5, HRS, as applicable, have 

been met.  Satisfactory evidence shall take the form of a certified copy of a diploma, 

a certified transcript (date and degree granted), or a statement from a college official 

indicating that the applicant will graduate within one hundred twenty days after the 

examination. 

 (e) An applicant requesting an exemption from the educational 

requirements pursuant to section 466-5(c), HRS, shall arrange to provide direct 

confirmation to the board, from an appropriate source, that the applicant meets the 

requirements stated therein.  [Eff 1/1/74; am 5/12/78; am 3/6/80; am and ren 

§16-71-17, 6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; am and comp 

2/22/94; am and comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; 

comp                              ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §§466-5, 466-5.5) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-18  Examination.  The examination prescribed in section 466-5(e), 

HRS, shall consist of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

(AICPA) examination.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-18, 6/25/81; am and comp 

6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; comp 2/22/94; am and comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; 

comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) 

(Imp:  HRS §466-5) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-19  Computer-based examination.  (a) The board shall use the 

examination prescribed by the AICPA, and shall make all necessary arrangements 

with the AICPA including the grading of the examination.  The grades issued by the 

AICPA are advisory only and shall be ratified by the board to be official.  

 (b) Applications for the examination shall be: 

 (1) Made on a form provided by the board and filed with the board by 

the date specified in the application form; and 

 (2) Accompanied by the examination fee specified in chapter 16-53 

which shall not be refundable.  For each section of the examination, 

the applicant shall pay a candidate testing fee that includes the actual 

fees charged by the AICPA, NASBA, and the test delivery service 

provider, as well as the application fees specified in chapter 16-53.  

An application shall not be accepted for consideration unless the 

application is completed properly, and the correct fee and supporting 

documents required under this chapter and chapter 466, HRS, are 



10 

 

attached to the application.  In the case of an applicant who will 

complete the educational requirements within one hundred twenty 

days after the first examination, a transcript of the last semester shall 

be sent to the board immediately upon the school's release of the 

grades. 

 (c) An applicant who, subsequent to filing a completed application, 

wishes to reschedule the applicant's appointment to take the 

examination, may reschedule at no charge if the applicant notifies 

the board at least thirty days prior to the date of the appointment to 

take the examination.  [.]  Rescheduling an appointment within thirty 

days before the date of the appointment to take the examination shall 

result in the assessment of a fee specified in chapter 16-53 which 

shall not be refundable.  Failure to appear for the examination shall 

cause the forfeiture of all fees charged for the application and the 

examination. 

 (d) Each applicant shall present evidence satisfactory to the board that 

the requirements set forth in section 466-5, HRS, have been met. Satisfactory 

evidence shall take the form of a certified copy of a diploma, a certified transcript 

(date and degree granted), or a statement from a college official indicating that the 

applicant will graduate within one hundred twenty days after the examination. 

 (e) In the case of an applicant admitted to the examination on the 

expectation that the applicant will complete the educational requirements within one 

hundred twenty days, no grades shall be released and no credit shall be given for any 

part of the examination unless the educational requirement is met within one 

hundred twenty days of the examination and evidence of completion is submitted to 

the board. 

 (f) The examination for the license of certified public accountant shall 

be held in the State at places designated by the board. 

 (g) The board may apply reasonable security measures which are 

deemed necessary to confirm the identification of the applicants for examination. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this chapter, the board may postpone a 

scheduled examination, the release of grades, or the issuance of a license due to a 

breach of examination security or examination misconduct. 

 (h) An applicant shall attain a grade of at least seventy-five, or the 

uniform passing grade established through a psychometrically acceptable 

standard-setting procedure approved by the board, in all sections of the examination 

in order to satisfactorily complete the entire examination. 

 (i) An applicant may take the required sections of the examination 

individually and in any order. Credit for any section passed shall only be valid for 

eighteen months from the last day of the [examination window] quarter in which the 



11 

 

applicant took that section, and the applicant shall not be required to maintain a 

minimum score on any failed section(s).  [An examination window means the three-

month period in which an applicant has an opportunity to take the examination, and 

is comprised of two months in which the examination is available to be taken and 

one month in which the examination will not be offered while routine maintenance 

is performed and the item bank is refreshed.] 

 (1) An applicant shall pass all four sections of the examination within a 

rolling eighteen-month period, which begins on the last day of the 

[examination window] quarter in which the first section(s) passed is 

taken. 

 (2) An applicant [shall not] can retake a failed section in the same 

[examination window.] quarter if the applicant’s grade for the 

previous attempt of that same section has been released. 

 (3) In the event all four sections of the examination are not passed 

within the rolling eighteeen-month period, credit for any section(s) 

passed outside the rolling eighteen-month period shall expire and 

that section(s) shall be retaken. 

 (j) The board shall accept conditional credits for any section or sections 

of the examination earned by the applicant and given under the authority of another 

state; provided that the applicant meets the educational requirements in section 

466-5, HRS and further provided that the conditional credits for any section or 

sections earned in another state would have been given if the applicant had taken the 

section or sections in this State. 

 (k) Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary, conditional 

credits that have expired may be extended only for good and valid reasons as 

determined by the board. 

 (l) The board may waive the examination for a license of certified 

public accountant in accordance with section 466-5(h), HRS; provided that with 

respect to the holder of a valid certificate or license of certified public accountant 

issued under the laws of another state, the board shall obtain written confirmation 

from an appropriate source in the other state that the certificate or license upon 

which an application for exemption is based is currently valid and in good standing. 

 [Eff 1/1/74; am 11/21/74; am 3/11/76; am 5/12/79; am and ren §16-71-19, 6/25/81; 

am and comp 6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; am and comp 2/22/94; am and comp 

6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; am and 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §§466-5, 466-8)  

 

 

 



12 

 

 §16-71-19.1  Examination misconduct.  (a) Any misconduct by an 

applicant in applying for, taking, or subsequent to the examination shall be 

prohibited and shall invalidate any grade earned by an applicant on any section of 

the examination, and may warrant summary expulsion from the test site, 

disqualification from taking the examination permanently or for a specified period 

of time, and other action deemed appropriate by the board. 

 (b) Acts of misconduct include but are not limited to any of the 

following: 

 (1) Falsifying or misrepresenting educational credentials or other 

information required for admission to the examination; 

 (2) Failure to follow examination instructions or procedures; 

 (3) Communication between applicants or with others inside or outside 

the test site while the examination is in progress; 

 (4) Copying another applicant's answers or allowing one's answers to be 

copied; 

 (5) Copying the examination questions or answers; 

 (6) Substitution of another person to sit in the test site; 

 (7) Reference to crib sheets, outlines, textbooks, or other material or 

electronic media (other than those provided to the applicant as part 

of the examination) inside or outside the test site while the 

examination is in progress; 

 (8) Leaving the test site without prior approval; 

 (9) Violating the nondisclosure prohibitions of the examination, or 

aiding or abetting another in doing so; or 

 (10) Retaking or attempting to retake a section by an individual holding a 

valid license of certified public accountant, or by an applicant who 

has unexpired conditional credit for having already passed the same 

section, provided that this may be allowed if the individual has been 

expressly authorized by the board to do so. 

 (c) In any case where it appears that misconduct has occurred or is 

occurring, the board or its designee may either summarily expel the applicant 

involved in the misconduct from the examination, or move the applicant to a 

separate area in the test site where the applicant can be more closely observed.  In 

any case where the board or its designee permits an applicant to continue taking the 

examination, it may:  

 (1) Admonish the applicant; 

 (2) Seat the applicant in a segregated location for the remainder of the 

examination; 



13 

 

 (3) Keep a record of the seat location and identifying information of the 

applicant, and the names and identifying information of other 

applicants in close proximity to the applicant; or 

 (4) Notify the national candidate database, the AICPA, and the test 

delivery service provider of the circumstances, so that the applicant 

may be more closely monitored in future examination sessions. 

 (d) In any case where the board believes that it has evidence that an 

applicant has been involved in examination misconduct, the board shall conduct an 

investigation and may conduct a hearing consistent with the provisions of section 

16-71-66, chapter 16-201, and chapter 91, HRS. 

 (e) If an applicant is refused credit for any section(s) of the examination, 

disqualified from taking any section, or barred from taking the examination in the 

future, the board or its designee may provide information on its findings and actions 

taken to the board of accountancy of another state or jurisdiction of the United 

States.  [Eff and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; comp                                 ] (Auth: 

HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §§466-5, 466-8) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-20  Repealed.  [R 6/3/95] 

 

 

 

 §16-71-21  Experience.  (a) Except as otherwise provided in section 

466-5(d), HRS, an applicant shall have met one of the following experience 

requirements for a license: 

(1) Completion of one thousand five hundred chargeable hours in the 

performance of audits involving the application of generally 

accepted accounting principles and auditing standards earned while 

in public accounting practice; or 

(2) Completion of two years of professional experience in: 

(A) Public accountancy practice as defined in section 466-3, 

HRS; or 

(B) Private or government accounting or auditing work deemed 

by the board to be equivalent to professional experience in 

public accountancy practice. 

(b) The professional experience described in subsection (a)(2) shall: 

 (1) Include: 

(A) The issuance of reports on financial statements involving 

the use of accounting or auditing skills, or both, and the 



14 

 

application of generally accepted accounting principles or 

another comprehensive basis of accounting of the United 

States; 

(B) Management advisory or consulting services involving the 

use of accounting or auditing skills, or both; or 

(C) The preparation of tax returns or furnishing of advice on 

tax matters in accordance with applicable tax laws of the 

United States; and 

(2) Be obtained in one of the following categories, or any combination 

thereof: 

(A) Public practice (i.e., working for a public accounting firm); 

(B) Private sector or industry (i.e., working for a private 

business that is not a public accounting firm); 

(C) Government (i.e., federal, state, county, etc.); or 

(D) Education (i.e., working as an instructor teaching upper 

division or graduate level accounting or auditing subjects); 

provided that the experience described in this subsection shall not be credited 

toward or apply to the thirty months of experience specified in section 

466-5(b)(2), HRS.  The thirty months of experience shall be gained in public 

practice and shall be applicable to the extent provided in section 466-5.5, HRS. 

(c) All experience required under this chapter and chapter 466, HRS, 

shall: 

(1) Be non-routine, non-clerical, and non-ministerial in nature; 

(2) Continually require independent thought and judgment on 

accounting or auditing matters; 

(3) Be gained under the supervision of an individual who holds or has 

held a [license] permit in this State, or the equivalent in another 

jurisdiction, during the period of supervision; provided that an 

applicant may be immediately supervised by a [non-licensee] non-

permit holder as long as the applicant ultimately reports to, is 

instructed by, is reviewed by, and is evaluated directly by an 

individual who holds or has held a [license] permit in this State, or 

the equivalent in another jurisdiction, during the period of 

supervision; and 

(A) The applicant's supervisor shall have supervised, reviewed, 

and evaluated the applicant's work on a routine and 

recurring basis. 

(B) Supervision may be facilitated through telecommunications 

systems and devices, and computers; provided that this 



15 

 

shall not be the primary method of supervision.  A majority 

of the supervision shall be of a personal nature. 

(C) To be acceptable, the supervision shall have been provided 

while the applicant was an employee of the same public 

accounting firm, entity, or agency that employed the 

supervisor; and 

(4) Have been of a full-time nature, measured in terms of weeks. Full-

time employment shall constitute at least thirty-five hours per 

week. 

(d) Each applicant shall submit a detailed statement or form prescribed 

by the board which fully describes the applicant's experience to the satisfaction of 

the board.  The statement or form shall be signed and certified by the applicant's 

present or former supervisor who holds or has held a [license] permit in this State, 

or its equivalent in another jurisdiction, during the period of supervision.  [Eff and 

comp 6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; comp 2/22/94; am and comp 6/3/95; am and 

comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; am and comp 2/13/12; am and 

comp                              ] (Auth:  §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §466-5) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-22  Knowledge of laws and rules.  On the application, each 

applicant for a license of certified public accountant shall attest that the applicant 

has read and shall abide by the provisions of chapter 466, HRS, and this chapter. 

[Eff and comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §466-5) 

 

 

 

SUBCHAPTER 4 

 

PERMIT TO PRACTICE 

 

 §16-71-24  Permit to practice.  (a) Individual permit to practice.  For a 

permit to practice public accountancy, a certified public accountant licensed under 

section 466-5, HRS, or public accountant licensed under section 466-6, HRS, shall 

file an application and include an attestation that the applicant has fulfilled the 

continuing professional education requirements specified in subchapter 5. 

(b) Firm permit to practice. 

(1) For a permit to practice public accountancy, a firm engaged in 

public accounting in this State shall file an application listing the 



16 

 

principals of the firm (i.e., sole proprietor, partners in a 

partnership, shareholders of a professional accounting corporation, 

or members of a limited liability company). 

(A) As of the date of the application, a foreign or multi-state 

firm shall list only those principals who are residents of 

Hawaii or who are engaged in public accounting practice in 

this State. 

(B) If the firm has no permanent office in this State, and no 

principals who are residents of this State or principals who 

are engaged in public accounting practice in this State, the 

firm shall list a principal with a current Hawaii individual 

permit to practice. 

(C) The Hawaii business operations of a foreign or multi-state 

firm shall constitute a "firm" for purposes of the firm 

permit to practice under 466-7, HRS. 

(2) For a permit to practice public accountancy, a firm shall also 

provide its Hawaii general excise tax license number pursuant to 

section 237-9, HRS, on its application.  Failure to provide a Hawaii 

general excise tax license number shall result in a denial of the 

firm permit to practice unless the firm attests that it does not and 

shall not have any gross income for engaging in the practice of 

public accounting in this State. 

(3) All principals of a firm physically located in the State or that has a 

permanent office in the State shall be licensed as certified public 

accountants or public accountants with individual permits to 

practice under section 466-7, HRS. 

(4) All foreign or multi-state firms engaged in public accounting 

practice in this State shall have at least one licensed certified public 

accountant or public accountant principal (i.e., sole proprietor, 

partner in a partnership, shareholder of a professional accounting 

corporation, or member of a limited liability company) with a 

permit to practice under section 466-7, HRS. 

(5) The firm permit to practice shall be automatically terminated upon 

the death or loss of the permit to practice of all principals of a firm. 

The permit to practice for the firm may be reinstated upon the 

transfer of shares or membership interests to an individual who 

holds a  permit to practice under section 466-7, HRS, or upon the 

reinstatement of the permit to practice of the sole proprietor, sole 

shareholder, or sole member of a limited liability company, as the 

case may be.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-24, 6/25/81; am and 



17 

 

comp 6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; 

comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4)  (Imp:  HRS 

§466-7) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-25  Repealed. [R 6/8/84] 

 

 

 

 §16-71-26  Control and reporting.  (a) For the purpose of this section, a 

permit shall be obtained whether or not the public accounting practice is: 

 (1) One of continuation from the prior year; 

 (2) One to be entered into for the first time; or  

 (3) One to be resumed after the permit to practice for the prior year or 

prior years has lapsed.  

 (b) For a 1974 permit, an applicant shall file an application prior to the 

commencement date of the applicant's public practice.  For a permit to practice 

public accountancy for the year 1975 and each year thereafter, the applicant shall file 

an application, on a form prescribed by the board, at least thirty days prior to the 

date on which the permit shall become effective.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren 

§16-71-26, 6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; comp 2/22/94; 

comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §§466-4, 466-7) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-27  Temporary permit to practice.  An application for a temporary 

permit to practice, pursuant to section 466-7(c), HRS, shall be filed on a form 

prescribed by the board not later than sixty days prior to the commencement of the 

period covered by the application and shall be accompanied by a statement signed 

by an official of the jurisdiction which issued the certificate or registration, attesting 

that the same is currently valid, and unrevoked.  The board may waive the filing 

deadline requirement for good cause.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-27, 6/25/81; 

am and comp 6/8/84; comp 10/23/87; am and comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 

1/22/01; comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS 

§466-4) (Imp:  HRS §466-7) 

 

 



18 

 

 

 

SUBCHAPTER 5 

 

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION 

 

 §16-71-31  Basic concept.  The overriding consideration in determining 

whether or not a specific program qualifies as acceptable continuing professional 

education is whether the program is a formal program of learning which will 

contribute directly to the professional competence of a licensee in public practice. 

Each licensee shall determine the course of study to be pursued by the licensee 

within the guidelines established by  this chapter.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren 

§16-71-31, 6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; comp 10/23/87; comp 2/22/94; comp 

6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §466-7) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-32  Persons covered.  Any person in public accounting practice, 

regardless of the extent or degree of the practice, shall be covered by this chapter. 

[Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-32, 6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; comp 10/23/87; 

comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12]; 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §466-7)  

 

 

 

 §16-71-33  Basic requirements of study hours.  (a) For a permit to practice 

public accountancy covering each biennium, an individual applicant shall file, 

together with the application and payment of a fee for a permit to practice, an 

attestation as to the completion of at least eighty hours in continuing professional 

education programs. The eighty hours shall have been earned by the applicant within 

a twenty-four month period, and within twenty-four months prior to the date of the 

application for a permit to practice [.] , with a minimum of 20 hours earned within 

each calendar year. 

 (b) The applicant shall include within the eighty hours of continuing 

professional education programs, at least four hours of continuing professional 

education in the subject area of ethics or professional conduct; provided that these 

hours may also be used to simultaneously fulfill the requirements to renew the 

license of a certified public accountant or public accountant under section 16-71-2. 



19 

 

 (c) The continuing professional education requirement of eighty hours 

may be prorated only for the permit obtained for the biennium period immediately 

following an individual's first permit to practice.  The proration schedule shall be ten 

hours for each three month period of the biennium.  The number of hours required 

shall be determined by the date on which the individual's first permit to practice was 

approved. 

 (d) An applicant whose first permit was approved in the first three 

months of the biennium shall earn eighty hours to obtain the subsequent permit; an 

applicant whose first permit was approved in the second three months of the 

biennium shall earn seventy hours to obtain the subsequent permit; and the total 

hours required shall decrease by ten hours for each three month period to a 

minimum of ten hours for an applicant whose first permit was approved in the last 

three months of the biennium period.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-33, 6/25/81; 

am and comp 6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; am and comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; 

comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12]; am and 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §466-7) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-34  Hours which qualify.  A minimum of fifty minutes shall 

constitute one continuing professional education hour.  No credit for continuing 

professional education hours shall be allowed for time expended for study outside of 

the classroom nor shall additional credits be allowed for programs or courses 

repeated in any single year. The hours spent in continuing professional education 

programs shall be measured, as follows: 

 (1) A one-day program, other than a university or college course, of not 

less than six hours shall equal eight continuing professional 

education hours;  

 (2) One hour of attendance in a group program, other than a university 

or college course, shall equal one continuing professional education 

hour;  

 (3) Each hour certified by the sponsor of an individual self-study 

program shall equal one continuing professional education hour;  

 (4) An academic credit hour for a semester earned from an accredited 

university or college as specified in section 16-71-17(a)(1) shall 

equal fifteen continuing professional education hours, provided the 

credits were not counted toward certification; 

 (5) An academic credit hour for a quarter earned from an accredited 

university or college as specified in section 16-71-17(a)(l) shall equal 



20 

 

ten continuing professional education hours, provided the credits 

were not counted toward certification; 

 (6) Each university or college classroom hour in noncredit study shall 

equal one continuing professional education hour; 

 (7) Each hour of university or college classroom work as a teacher, 

instructor, or lecturer shall equal one continuing professional 

education hour; however, the total cumulative continuing 

professional education hours earned by this method shall not exceed 

forty credit hours towards continuing professional education in any 

biennium; credit for the same course shall be awarded only once 

during a three year period;  

 (8) Each hour spent at a group program, other than a university or 

college course, as a lecturer, discussion leader, or speaker shall equal 

one continuing professional education hour if the attendees of the 

group program shall be able to earn continuing professional 

education credit as a result of the attendance; and provided that the 

total cumulative hours earned by this method shall not exceed forty 

credit hours toward continuing professional education in any 

biennium; credit for the same  course shall be awarded only once 

during a three-year period;  

 (9) Fifty per cent of each hour spent as a reviewer at a formally 

sponsored inter-office or inter-firm quality review program; and 

provided that the credit shall not exceed twenty continuing 

professional education hours in any biennium;  

 (10) Credit may be allowed for authoring articles and books published in 

any one year, provided that they contribute to the professional 

competence of the licensee.  Credit for the publications may be given 

on a self-declaration basis; provided the credit shall not exceed 

twenty continuing professional education hours in any biennium; and  

 (11) An applicant for a permit to practice shall be allowed eighty hours of 

continuing professional education credit for passing the AICPA 

examination for the two years following the date the applicant is 

notified of passing the examination.  If an applicant has not taken 

credit in the two years following notification, the applicant shall be 

allowed to take credit for forty hours of continuing professional 

education during the third year following notification.  Credit for 

passing the AICPA examination shall not be taken more than once. 

[Eff 1/1/74; am 11/21/74; am and ren §16-71-34, 6/25/81; am and 

comp 6/8/84; comp 10/23/87; am and comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; 

comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; 



21 

 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS 

§466-7) 

 

 

 §16-71-35  Deficiency in hours and carryover hours.  (a) In the event an 

applicant, except as provided in section 16-71-46, is found to be lacking in the 

eighty required continuing professional education hours as of December 31 of any 

odd-numbered year, the applicant shall be required to make up the deficient hours 

before the board approves the permit to practice. 

 (b) In the event the total continuing professional education hours is 

found to be in excess of the minimum requirements in any biennium, the applicant 

may carryover the excess to the following biennium's requirements, provided that 

the carryover shall be limited to forty hours.  It shall be the responsibility of the 

licensee to maintain a record of any carryover credits.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren 

§16-71-35, 6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; am and comp 

2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §466-7) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-36  Program classifications.  (a) The continuing [professional] 

professional education programs shall be classified into two categories, as follows: 

 (1) Group programs as prescribed in section 16-71-37; and 

 (2) Individual self-study programs as prescribed in section 16-71-38. 

 (b) Continuing professional education programs may include but are not 

limited to the following subjects: 

 (1) Accounting (public, private, and governmental); 

 (2) Auditing (public, private, and governmental); 

 (3) Administrative practice; 

 (4) Social environment of business; 

 (5) Ethics or professional conduct; 

 (6) Business law; 

 (7) Business management and organization; 

 (8) Finance; 

 (9) Business valuation; 

 (10) Insurance; 

 (11) Management advisory services; 

 (12) Marketing; 

 (13) Behavioral ethics; 

 (14) Communications; 



22 

 

 (15) Personal development; 

 (16) Personnel/human relations; 

 (17) Computer science; 

 (18) Economics; 

 (19) Mathematics; 

 (20) Production; 

 (21) Financial planning; 

 (22) Statistics; and 

 (23) Taxes.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-36, 6/25/81; am and comp 

6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; am and comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; 

comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; am and 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS 

§466-7) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-37  Requirements for group programs.  Each group program 

shall: 

 (1) Require attendance;  

 (2) Be at least fifty minutes in duration; 

 (3) Be conducted by a qualified instructor or discussion leader;  

 (4) Through its sponsor, maintain written records of its attendees and of 

the program outline for a period of two years immediately following 

the conclusion of the program; 

 (5) Through its sponsor, issue to each attendee written evidence of 

attendance with the suggested continuing professional education 

credit hours shown thereon, exclusive of any study or preparation 

time; and 

 (6) Have a board approved sponsor.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-37, 

6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; am and comp 

2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 

2/13/12; comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  

HRS §466-7) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-38  Requirements for individual self-study programs.  Each 

individual self-study program shall: 

 (1) Be conducted by a qualified board approved sponsor; 



23 

 

 (2) Through its sponsor, issue a certificate of completion, specifying 

subject matter and recommended continuing professional education 

credit hours; and 

 (3) Through its sponsor, maintain written records of each student and of 

the program outline for a period of two years immediately following 

the conclusion of the program.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-38, 

6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; am and comp 

2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 

2/13/12; comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  

HRS §466-7) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-39  Sponsors whose programs automatically qualify.  Subject to 

compliance with the requirements of sections 16-71-37 and 16-71-38, the program 

sponsors who automatically qualify shall include: 

 (1) All non-profit nationally recognized accounting and auditing 

associations, such as the American Institute of Certified Public 

Accountants, the National Society of [Public] Accountants, the 

[American Society of Women Accountants,] Accounting and 

Financial Women’s Alliance, the National Association of 

Accountants, the National Association of State Boards of 

Accountancy, and their respective state societies, state boards, 

chapters, or branches; 

 (2) Universities and colleges, provided that the institutions are 

accredited as specified under section 16-71-17(a)(1); or 

 (3) Sponsors approved by another state board or by the National 

Association of State Boards of Accountancy's National Registry. [Eff 

1/1/74;  am 5/12/78; am and ren §16-71-39, 6/25/81; am and comp 

6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; am and comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; 

comp 1/22/01; comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; am and 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS 

§466-7) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-40  Repealed.  [R 2/22/94] 

 

 

 



24 

 

 §16-71-41  Requirements for approval by the board.  Sponsors who do 

not automatically qualify shall be required to apply to the board on a form 

prescribed by the board prior to the program event.  The sponsor shall comply with 

all requirements, policies, and standards set forth by the board.  [Eff l/1/74; am 

11/21/74; am and ren §16-71-41, 6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; comp 10/23/87; am 

and comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §466-7) 

 §16-71-42  Repealed.  [R 2/22/94] 

 

 

 

 §16-71-43  Duration of approval.  The approval by the board of each group 

program sponsor and each individual self-study program sponsor shall expire on 

December 31 of every odd-numbered year.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-43, 

6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; comp 10/23/87; am and comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; 

comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; comp                                 ] 

(Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §466-7) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-44  Repealed.  [R 2/22/94] 

 

 

 

 §16-71-45  Information requirements.  (a) Accompanying an application 

for a permit to practice, each certified public accountant and public accountant shall 

also file, on a form prescribed by the board, an attestation relating to the applicant's 

continuing professional education, setting forth the following: 

 (1) Name of the course sponsor; 

 (2) Identification number of the course sponsor as issued by the National 

Association of State Boards of Accountancy's National Registry, the 

board, or any other board of accountancy in a state or jurisdiction of 

the United States; 

 (3) Title of the course; 

 (4) Date attended; and 

 (5) Hours claimed. 

 (b) The board may randomly audit continuing professional education 

hours and require an applicant to submit written evidence satisfactory to the board 

demonstrating compliance with the continuing professional education requirements 

provided in this chapter.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-45, 6/25/81; am and comp 



25 

 

6/8/84; comp 10/23/87; am and comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; am and 

comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) 

(Imp:  HRS §466-7) 

 

 

 §16-71-46  Exceptions.  The board may issue a permit to practice to any 

applicant who has not fully complied with the continuing professional education 

requirement in cases where failure by the applicant to fulfill the requirement has 

been caused by reason of: 

 (1) Health, as certified by a medical doctor;  

 (2) Military service on extended active duty with the armed forces of the 

United States; or  

 (3) Other good and valid causes, as determined and approved by the 

board.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-46, 6/25/81; am and comp 

6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 

1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS 

§466-7) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-47  Certification to other jurisdiction.  The board shall certify, 

upon request, to any state as to the compliance with continuing professional 

education requirements under the laws of the State by any of its licensees.  [Eff 

1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-47, 6/25/81; comp 6/8/84; comp 10/23/87; comp 

2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp  2/13/12; 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §466-7) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-48  Exception for temporary permits.  This subchapter governing 

continuing professional education shall not apply to any applicant for a temporary 

permit to be issued under section 466-7(c), HRS.  [Eff  1/1/74; am and ren 

§16-71-48, 6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; comp 10/23/87; am and comp 2/22/94; 

comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; am and comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §466-7) 

 

 

 

SUBCHAPTER 6 - REPEALED 



26 

 

 

 

 

 §16-71-52  Repealed.  [R 2/22/94] 

 

 §16-71-53  Repealed.  [R 2/22/94] 

 

 

 

 §16-71-54  Repealed.  [R 2/22/94] 

 

 

 

 §16-71-55  Repealed.  [R 2/22/94] 

 

 

 

 §16-71-56  Repealed.  [R 2/22/94] 

 

 

 

 §16-71-57  Repealed.  [R 8/25/88] 

 

 

 

 SUBCHAPTER 7  

 

 RULES OF CONDUCT  

 

 §16-71-61  Independence, integrity, and objectivity.  (a) A licensee shall 

not express an opinion on financial statements of an enterprise in a manner as to 

imply that the licensee is acting as an independent public accountant with respect 

thereto unless the licensee is independent with respect to the enterprise. 

 Independence shall be considered to be impaired if, for example: 

 (1) During the period of the licensee's professional engagement, or at the 

time of expressing an opinion, the licensee: 

  (A) Had acquired or was committed to acquire any direct or 

material indirect financial interest in the enterprise;  



27 

 

  (B) Was a trustee, executor, or administrator of any trust or estate 

which had acquired or was committed to acquire any direct 

or material indirect financial interest in the enterprise;  

  (C) Had any joint closely-held business investment with the 

enterprise or any officer, director, or principal stockholder 

thereof which was material in relation to the net worth of 

either the licensee or the enterprise; or  

  (D) Had any loan to or from the enterprise or any officer, 

director, or principal stockholder thereof other than loans of 

the following kinds made by a financial institution under 

normal lending procedures, terms, and requirements:  

   (i) Loans obtained by the licensee which  are not 

material in relation to the  net worth of the borrower; 

   (ii) Home mortgages; and  

   (iii) Other secured loans, except those secured solely by a 

guarantee of the licensee; 

 (2) During the period covered by the financial statements, during the 

period of the professional engagement, or at the time of expressing 

an opinion, the licensee:  

  (A) Was connected with the enterprise as a promoter, 

underwriter, voting trustee, director, or officer, or in any 

capacity equivalent to a member of management or of an 

employee; or 

  (B) Was a trustee of any pension or profit-sharing trust of the 

enterprise. 

Paragraphs (1) and (2) are not intended to be all-inclusive examples. 

 (b) A licensee, in the performance of professional services shall not 

knowingly misrepresent facts, and shall not subordinate the licensee's judgment to 

others.  In tax practice, however, a licensee may resolve doubt in favor of a client as 

long as there is reasonable support for the position. 

 (c) A licensee shall not pay a commission to obtain a client, nor accept a 

commission for a referral to a client of products or services of others.  This 

subsection shall not prohibit payments for the purpose of all, or a material part, of an 

accounting practice or retirement payments to persons formerly engaged in the 

practice of public accountancy, or payments to the heirs or estates of those persons. 

 (d) A licensee shall not offer or perform professional services for a fee 

which is contingent upon the findings or results of those services; provided this 

subsection shall not apply to professional services involving federal, state, or other 

taxes in which the findings are those of the tax authorities and not those of the 

licensee, nor shall it apply to professional services for which the fees are to be fixed 



28 

 

by courts or other public authorities, and which are, therefore, indeterminate in 

amount at the time the professional services are undertaken. 

 (e) A licensee shall not concurrently engage in the practice of public 

accountancy and in any other business or occupation which impairs the licensee's 

independence or objectivity in rendering professional services.  [Eff 3/6/80; am and 

ren §16-71-61, 6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; am and comp 

2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §466-4) 

 

 

 

 §16-71-62  Competence and technical standards.  (a) A licensee shall not 

undertake any engagement for the performance of professional services which the 

licensee cannot reasonably expect to complete with due professional competence, 

including compliance, where applicable, with subsections (b) and (c). 

 (b) A licensee's name shall not be permitted to be associated with 

financial statements in a manner as to imply that the licensee is acting as an 

independent public accountant with respect to the financial statements unless the 

licensee is in compliance with applicable generally accepted auditing standards. 

Statement on Auditing Standards issued by the American Institute of Certified 

Public Accountants, and other pronouncements having similar generally recognized 

authority, are considered to be interpretations of generally accepted auditing 

standards, and departures therefrom shall be justified by those who do not follow 

them. 

 (c) A licensee shall not express an opinion that financial statements are 

presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles if the 

financial statements contain any departure from an accounting principle which has a 

material effect on the statements taken as a whole, unless the licensee can 

demonstrate that due to unusual circumstances the financial statements would 

otherwise have been misleading.  In that case, the licensee's report shall describe the 

departure, the approximate effects thereof, if practicable, and the reasons why 

compliance with the principles would result in a misleading statement.  

 (d) A licensee, in the performance of professional services, shall not 

permit the licensee's name to be used in conjunction with any forecast of future 

transactions in a manner which may reasonably lead to the belief that the licensee 

vouches for the achievability of the forecast.  [Eff 3/6/80; am and ren §16-71-62, 

6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; 

comp 1/22/01; comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; comp                                 ] (Auth:  

HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §466-4) 

 



29 

 

 

 

 

 §16-71-63  Responsibilities to clients.  (a) A licensee, without the consent 

of the client, shall not disclose any confidential information pertaining to the client 

obtained in the course of performing professional services.  

 (b) Subsection (a) shall not: 

 (1) Relieve a licensee of any obligations under section 16-71-62(b) and 

(c); 

 (2) Affect in any way a licensee's obligation to comply with a validly 

issued subpoena or summons enforceable by order of a court;  

 (3) Prohibit disclosures in the course of a quality review of a licensee's 

professional services; or 

 (4) Preclude a licensee from responding to any inquiry made by the 

board or any investigative or disciplinary body established by law or 

formally recognized by the board.  

 (c) Members of the board and professional practice reviewers shall not 

disclose any confidential client information which comes to their attention from 

licensees in disciplinary proceedings or otherwise in carrying out their 

responsibilities, except that they may furnish the information to an investigative or 

disciplinary body of the kind referred to in subsection (b). 

 (d) When an engagement is completed, a  licensee shall furnish to a 

client or former client, upon request made within a reasonable time after original 

issuance or preparation of the document in question: 

 (1) A copy of a tax return of the client;  

 (2) A copy of any report, or other document, issued by the licensee to or 

for the client; 

 (3) Any accounting or other records belonging to, or obtained from or on 

behalf of, the client which the licensee removed from the client's 

premises or received for the client's account, but the licensee may 

make and retain copies of the documents when they form the basis of 

work done; and  

 (4) A copy of the licensee's working papers, to the extent that the 

working papers include records which would ordinarily constitute 

part of the client's books and records and are not otherwise available 

to the client, provided  that a licensee may require that any fees due 

and owing from the client to the licensee for the licensee's services, 

where the client has agreed in advance to pay such fees, be paid 

before a copy of the licensee's working papers is provided to the 

client.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-63, 6/25/81; am and comp 



30 

 

6/8/84; am and comp 10/23/87; am and comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; 

comp 1/22/01; comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; 

comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS 

§466-4) 

 

 

 §16-71-64  Other responsibilities and practices.  (a) A licensee shall not 

commit any act which reflects adversely on  the licensee's fitness to engage in the 

practice of public accountancy. 

 (b) A licensee shall not permit others to carry out on the licensee's 

behalf, either with or without compensation, acts which, if carried out by the 

licensee, would place the licensee in violation of the rules of conduct. 

 (c) A licensee shall not use or participate in the use of any form of 

public communication having reference to the licensee's professional services which 

contains a false, fraudulent, misleading, deceptive, or unfair statement or claim.  A 

false, fraudulent, misleading, deceptive, or unfair statement or claim includes, but is 

not limited to, a statement or claim which: 

 (1) Contains a misrepresentation of fact;  

 (2) Is likely to mislead or deceive because it fails to make full disclosure 

of relevant facts;  

 (3) Contains any testimonial or laudatory statement, or other statement 

or implication that the licensee's professional services are of 

exceptional quality; 

 (4) Is intended or likely to create false or unjustified expectations of 

favorable results;  

 (5) Implies educational or professional attainments or licensing 

recognition not supported in fact;  

 (6) States or implies that the licensee has received formal recognition as 

a specialist in any aspect of the practice of public accountancy, if this 

is not the case;  

 (7) Represents that professional services can or will be competently 

performed for a stated fee when this is not the case, or makes 

representations with respect to fees for professional services that do 

not disclose all variables affecting the fees that will be charged; or  

 (8) Contains other representations or implications that in reasonable 

probability will cause an ordinarily prudent person to misunderstand 

or be deceived.  

 (d) A licensee shall not by any direct personal communication solicit an 

engagement to perform professional services: 



31 

 

 (1) If the communication would violate subsection (c) and it is a public 

communication; or  

 (2) By the use of coercion, duress, compulsion, intimidation, threats, 

overreaching, or vexatious or harassing conduct. 

 (e) A licensee shall not practice public accountancy under a firm name 

which is misleading in any way, as to the legal form of the firm, or as to the persons 

who are sole practitioners, partners, officers, managers of a manager managed 

limited liability company or shareholders of the firm, or as to any matter with 

respect to which public communications are restricted by subsection (c).  A firm 

name shall not be used by a licensee in the practice of public accountancy unless the 

name has been registered with and approved by the board and the registration of the 

firm has been approved by the business registration division of the department of 

commerce and consumer affairs. However, names of one or more past partners or 

shareholders may be included in the firm name of a partnership or corporation or its 

successor, and a partner surviving the death or withdrawal of all other partners may 

continue to practice under a partnership name for up to two years after becoming a 

sole practitioner. 

 (f) A licensee, when requested, shall respond to communications from 

the board within thirty days of the mailing of the communications by registered or 

certified mail.  [Eff 1/1/74; am and ren §16-71-64, 6/25/81; am and comp 6/8/84; 

am and comp 10/23/87; am and comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; comp 

1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; am and comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) 

(Imp:  HRS §466-4)  

 

 

 

SUBCHAPTER 8 

 

PRACTICE AND PROCEDURE 

 

 §16-71-66  Administrative practice and procedure.  The rules of practice 

and procedure for certified public accountants and public accountants shall be as 

provided in chapter 16-201, the rules of practice and procedure of the department of 

commerce and consumer affairs, which are incorporated by reference and made a 

part of this chapter.  [Eff and comp 10/23/87; am and comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; 

comp 1/22/01; comp 1/30/10; comp 2/13/12; comp                                 ] (Auth:  

HRS §§91-2, 466-4) (Imp:  HRS §§91-2, 466-4)  

 

 

 



32 

 

SUBCHAPTER 9 

 

ORAL TESTIMONY 

 §16-71-69  Oral testimony.  (a) The board shall accept oral testimony on 

any item which is on the agenda, provided that the testimony shall be subject to the 

following conditions: 

 (1) Each person seeking to present oral testimony shall notify the board 

not later than forty-eight hours prior to the meeting, and at that time 

shall state the item on which testimony is to be presented;  

 (2) The board may request that any person providing oral testimony 

submit the remarks, or a summary of the remarks, in writing to the 

board; 

 (3) The board may rearrange the items on the agenda for the purposes of 

providing for the most efficient and convenient presentation of oral 

testimony; 

 (4) Persons presenting oral testimony shall, at the beginning of the 

testimony, identify themselves and the organization, if any, that they 

represent; 

 (5) The board may limit oral testimony to a specified time period but in 

no case shall the period be less than five minutes, and the person 

testifying shall be informed prior to the commencement of the 

testimony of the time constraints to be imposed; and  

 (6) The board may refuse to hear any testimony which is irrelevant, 

immaterial, or unduly repetitious to the agenda item on which it is 

presented.  

 (b) Nothing in this section shall require the board to hear or receive any 

oral or documentary evidence from a person on any matter which is the subject of 

another pending proceeding, subject to the declaratory relief or rule relief provisions 

of chapter 16-201. 

 (c) Nothing in this section shall prevent the board from soliciting oral 

remarks from persons present at the meeting or from inviting persons to make 

presentations to the board on any particular matter on the board's agenda."  [Eff and 

comp 10/23/87; comp 2/22/94; comp 6/3/95; comp 1/22/01; comp 1/30/10; comp 

2/13/12; comp                                 ] (Auth:  HRS §466-4) (Imp:  HRS §92-3) 

 

 

 

 

 

 



33 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 2. Material, except source notes, to be repealed is bracketed.  New 

material is underscored. 

 

 3. Additions to update source notes to reflect these amendments and 

compilation are not underscored. 

 

 4. These amendments to and compilation of chapter 16-71, Hawaii 

Administrative Rules, shall take effect ten days after filing with the Office of the 

Lieutenant Governor. 

 

 

 

 I certify that the foregoing are copies of the rules drafted in the Ramseyer 

format pursuant to the requirements of section 91-4.1, Hawaii Revised Statutes, 

which were adopted on                                 , and filed with the Office of the 

Lieutenant Governor. 

 

 

 

    

 GREGG M. TAKETA, Chairperson 

 Board of Public Accountancy 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

   

 Deputy Attorney General 



 

 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS 

 

Amendment and Compilation of Chapter 16-71 

Hawaii Administrative Rules 

 

 

 

 1. Chapter 16-71, Hawaii Administrative Rules, entitled "Certified 

Public Accountants and Public Accountants", is amended and compiled to read as  

follows:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

IV.  Legislative Matters 
A. Discussion and Action on the following Legislative 

Matters: 
a. Update on Senate Bill 2078 Relating to the Small 

Business Regulatory Flexibility Act – Entitles the small 
business regulatory review board to a separate line item 
within the budget of the department of business, 
economic development, and tourism 

b. Upcoming Governor’s Message Submitting for 
Consideration for the Gubernatorial Nomination of 
Nancy Atmospera-Walch to the Small Business 
Regulatory Review Board for a term estimated to expire 
June 30, 2023 

c. Upcoming Governor’s Message,  Submitting for 
Consideration for the Gubernatorial Nomination of 
Mary Albitz to the Small Business Regulatory Review 
Board for a term to expire June 30, 2024 

d. Upcoming Governor’s Message Submitting for 
Consideration for the Gubernatorial Nomination of 
Robert Cundiff to the Small Business Regulatory 
Review Board for a term estimated to expire June 30, 
2023 

e. Upcoming Governor’s Message Submitting for 
Consideration for the Gubernatorial Nomination of 
James Lee to the Small Business Regulatory Review 
Board for a term to expire June 30, 2024 

f. Upcoming Governor’s Message Submitting for 
Consideration for the Gubernatorial Nomination of 
Taryn Rodighiero to the Small Business Regulatory 
Review Board for a term estimated to expire June 30, 
2023 

 



HB2078
Measure Title: RELATING TO THE SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY FLEXIBILITY ACT.

Report Title: Small Business Regulatory Review Board 

Entitles the small business regulatory review board to a separate line item within the 
Description: 

budget of the department of business, economic development, and tourism.

Companion:

Package: House Small Business Caucus

Current Referral: EDB, FIN

Introducer(s): WARD

Sort by 
Status Text

Date

1/17/2020 H Pending introduction.

1/21/2020 H Introduced and Pass First Reading.

1/27/2020 H Referred to EDB, FIN, referral sheet 5

Bill scheduled to be heard by EDB on Friday, 01-31-20 8:30AM in House conference 
1/28/2020 H

room 309.

Bill re-scheduled to be heard by EDB on Friday, 01-31-20 9:30AM in conference room 
1/28/2020 H

309.

1/31/2020 H The committee(s) on EDB recommend(s) that the measure be deferred.

S = Senate | H = House | D = Data Systems | $ = Appropriation measure | ConAm = Constitutional 
Amendment

Some of the above items require Adobe Acrobat Reader. Please visit Adobe's download page for detailed 
instructions.

HB2078



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
THIRTIETH LEGISLATURE, 2020
STATE OF HAWAII

A BILL FOR AN ACT
RELATING TO THE SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY FLEXIBILITY ACT.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF HAWAII:

1 SECTION 1. The legislature finds that the small business

2 regulatory review board lacks sufficient financial and

3 administrative support from the department of business, economic

4 development, and tourism. Without this support, the small

5 business regulatory review board is unable to accomplish its

6 mission.

7 Accordingly, the purpose of this Act is to support the

8 small business regulatory review board by establishing a line

9 item for the small business regulatory review board within the

10 budget of the department of business, economic development, and

11 tourism.

12 SECTION 2. Section 201M-5, Hawaii Revised Statutes, is

13 amended by amending subsection (a) to read as follows:

14 “(a) There shall be established within the department of

15 business, economic development, and tourism, for administrative

16 purposes, a small business regulatory review board [~-oj . The

HB HMIA 2020-1-10

II~IU III~ I~I~IU I~II I~ I~I IIIOIN II I~I~ II III III~III~BII~



Page 2 H.B. NO. Zca7Y

1 board shall review any proposed new or amended rule [or to],

2 consider any request from small business owners for review of

3 any rule adopted by a state agency, and [~-o] make

4 recommendations to the agency or the legislature regarding the

5 need for a rule change or legislation. The board shall be

6 entitled to a separate line item in the budget of the department

7 of business, economic development, and tourism. For requests

8 regarding county ordinances, the board may make recommendations

9 to the county council or the mayor for appropriate action.”

10 SECTION 3. Statutory material to be repealed is bracketed

11 and stricken. New statutory material is underscored.

12 SECTION 4. This Act shall take effect upon its

INTRODUCED BY:

JAN 17 2020

HE HMIA 2020-1-10 2



Report Title:
Small Business Regulatory Review Board

Description:
Entitles the small business regulatory review board to a
separate line item within the budget of the department of
business, economic development, and tourism.

The summary description of legislation appearing on this page is for informational purposes only and is
not legislation or evidence of legislative intent.

H.B. NO. 2.c~73’

HB HMIA 2020-1-10





                The Hawaii Business League 
   1188 Bishop St., Ste. 1003, Honolulu, Hawaii  96813 
   Phone:  (808) 533-6819 Facsimile:  (808) 533-2739 
 
 
January 31, 2020 
 
 
 
Testimony To: House Committee on Economic Development & Business 
   Representative Angus L.K. McKelvey, Chair 
 
    
Presented By: Tim Lyons 
   President 
 
 
Subject:  H.B. 2078 - RELATING TO SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY   
   FLEXIBILITY ACT. 
 
 
 
Chair McKelvey and Members of the Committee: 

 

I am Tim Lyons, President of the Hawaii Business League, a small business service 

organization and we support this bill. 

 

SBRB has struggled with a financial footing since its very day of inception.  Although 

this bill doesn’t guarantee that any money will be put on its line item, it at least 

establishes that there is to be a line item and hopefully somebody can fill in the blank 

with an amount that can help justify the existences of small business in our state which 

is afterall, the backbone of the business community. 

 

Based on the above, we can highly recommend passage of this bill. 

 

Thank you. 

 

 



 

 

733 Bishop Street, Suite 1200  •  Honolulu, Hawaii 96813  •  Phone: (808) 545-4300  •  Facsimile: (808) 545-4369 

Testimony to the House Committee on Economic Development and Business 
Friday, January 31, 2020 at 9:30 A.M. 
Conference Room 309, State Capitol 

 

RE:      HB 2078, RELATING TO THE SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY 
FLEXIBILITY ACT 

  
Chair McKelvey, Vice Chair Kitagawa, and Members of the Committee: 
 

The Chamber of Commerce Hawaii ("The Chamber") supports HB 2078, which 
would entitle the small business regulatory review board to a separate line item within 
the budget of the Department of Business, Economic Development, and Tourism.  

 

The Chamber is Hawaii’s leading statewide business advocacy organization, 
representing 2,000+ businesses. Approximately 80% of our members are small 
businesses with less than 20 employees. As the “Voice of Business” in Hawaii, the 
organization works on behalf of members and the entire business community to 
improve the state’s economic climate and to foster positive action on issues of common 
concern. 

  
The small business regulatory review board plays a vital function in reviewing 

various agencies’ rules and regulations and provides input on how those rules and 
regulations impact small businesses in Hawaii. As one of the most regulated states in the 
nation, the board oversight and input are essential to the well-being of businesses in 
Hawaii. Ensuring that the board has adequate funding will help to make sure that it can 
carry out its duties. 

 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide testimony in support of HB 2078. 

 
 



TO:  Chair McKelvey, Vice Chair Kitagawa and Members of the House   
  Committee on Economic Development & Business 
 

FROM:  Garth Yamanaka 
   
DATE:  January 31, 2020 – Room 309 at 9:30 a.m. 
 
SUBJECT: House Bill 2078, Relating to the Small Business Regulatory Flexibility Act 
 
 
As an individual who has been serving as a board member on the Small Business 
Regulatory Review Board (SBRRB) for the past five years, I am providing support of 
House Bill 2078.  This measure entitles the SBRRB to a separate line item within the 
budget of the Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism.  
 
Without a set budget, I am greatly aware of the challenges the SBRRB volunteers have 
encountered to provide sufficient outreach to the small business community to enhance 
the growth of small business in Hawaii.  While I am proud of the successes and 
accomplishments this hardworking group of gratis members has had, to date, I 
personally believe that the SBRRB could greatly improve upon its outreach to the small 
business community if a budget was granted.    
 
Thank you for hearing my testimony in support of House Bill 2078.      
 
  
  
 

 

 



TESTIMONY

TO: Chair McKelvey, Vice Chair Kitagawa, and Members of the House 
Committee on Business, Economic Development & Business

FROM: Nancy Atmospera-Walchi>0'T<?£i^

DATE: January 31, 2020 -  Room 309 at 9:30 a.m.

SUBJECT: House Bill 2078 Relating to the Small Business Regulatory 
Flexibility Act

Please be advised that as a member of  the Small Business Regulatory Review 
Board (SBRRB) for the past five years, I am providing comments in support of 
House Bill 2078 as an individual.

SB2078 entitles the SBRRB to a separate line item within the budget of  the 
Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism.

The SBRRB consists of ten small business owners across the State, providing 
recommendations to State and County Agencies and to the Governor and Mayors 
on new and amended administrative rules that impact small business. As a small 
businessowner I am proud to be a member of this conscientious and pro-active 
Board that is dedicated to the regulatory success of the State’s small businesses.

To continue with the board’s efforts, a separate line item will provide the SBRRB 
with the stability to continue with to do the work of  its statute that is essential to a 
strong regulatory environment.

Thank you for allowing me to provide testimony in support of House Bill 2078.

TESTIMONY

TO: Chair McKelvey, Vice Chair Kitagawa, and Members of the House
Committee on Business, Economic Development & Business

FROM: Nancy Atmospera-Walch='r//r'+-y-

DATE: January 31, 2020 — Room 309 at 9:30 a.m.

SUBJECT: House Bill 2078 Relating to the Small Business Regulatory
Flexibility Act

Please be advised that as a member of the Small Business Regulatory Review
Board (SBRRB) for the past five years, I am providing comments in support of
House Bill 2078 as an individual.

SB2078 entitles the SBRRB to a separate line item within the budget of the
Department ofBusiness, Economic Development and Tourism.

The SBRRB consists often small business owners across the State, providing
recommendations to State and County Agencies and to the Governor and Mayors
on new and amended administrative rules that impact small business. As a small
businessowner I am proud to be a member of this conscientious and pro-active
Board that is dedicated to the regulatory success of the State’s small businesses.

To continue with the board’s efforts, a separate line item will provide the SBRRB
with the stability to continue with to do the work of its statute that is essential to a
strong regulatory environment.

Thank you for allowing me to provide testimony in support ofHouse Bill 2078.



MEMORANDUM

TO: Chair McKelvey, Vice Chair Kitagawa, and Members of the House
Committee on Business, Economic Development & Business

FROM: Mary Albitz

DATE: January 31, 2020 -  Room 309 at 9:30 a.m.

SUBJECT: House Bill 2078 Relating to the Small Business Regulatory Flexibility Act

As a board member of the Small Business Regulatory Review Board (SBRRB) for the past two 
years, I am providing comments as an individual in support of House Bill 2078.

SB2078 entitles the SBRRB to a separate line item within the budget of the Department of 
Business, Economic Development and Tourism.

The SBRRB is comprised of eleven owners of small businesses across the State, of which I 
represent Maui County. We provide recommendations to State and Coimty Agencies and to the 
Governor and Mayors on new and amended Hawaii Administrative Rules that directly impact 
small business.

To continue with the board members efforts, a separate line item will provide the SBRRB with 
the strength needed to do the work of its statute that is vital to a stable regulatory environment.

I thank you for hearing my testimony in support of House Bill 2078.

MEMORANDUM

TO: Chair McKelvey, Vice Chair Kitagawa, and Members of the House
Committee on Business, Economic Development & Business

FROM: Mary Albitz

DATE: January 31, 2020 — Room 309 at 9:30 a.m.

SUBJECT: House Bill 2078 Relating to the Small Business Regulatory Flexibility Act

As a board member of the Small Business Regulatory Review Board (SBRRB) for the past two
years, I am providing cormnents as an individual in support ofHouse Bill 2078.

SB2078 entitles the SBRRB to a separate line item within the budget of the Department of
Business, Economic Development and Tourism.

The SBRRB is comprised of eleven owners of small businesses across the State, ofwl1ichI
represent Maui County. We provide recommendations to State and County Agencies and to the
Governor and Mayors on new and amended Hawaii Administrative Rules that directly impact
small business.

To continue with the board members efforts, a separate line item will provide the SBRRB with
the strength needed to do the work of its statute that is vital to a stable regulatory environment.

I thank you for hearing my testimony in support ofHouse Bill 2078.



MEMORANDUM

TO: Chair McKelvey, Vice Chair Kitagawa, and Members of the House 
Committee on Business, Economic Development & Business

FROM: William Lydgate

DATE: January 31,2020 -  Room 309 at 9:30 a.m.

SUBJECT: House Bill 2078 Relating to the Small Business Regulatory Flexibility Act

I am currently serving as a board member of the Small Business Regulatory Review 
Board (SBRRB) however, I am providing comments as an individual in support of 
House Bill 2078.

This measure entitles the SBRRB to a separate line item within the budget of the 
Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism.

The SBRRB has become a very instrumental voice within Hawaii’s small business 
community. Having a budget will help assist the SBRRB volunteers with the stability 
needed to efficiently carry on the work that supports the regulatory activity of Hawaii’s 
small business community.

As a proud member of this Board, thank you for hearing my testimony in support of 
House Bill 2078.



TO: Chair McKelvey, Vice Chair Kitagawa, and Members of the 
House Committee on Business, Economic Development & 
Business

FROM: James (Kimo) Lee --------

DATE: January 31, 2020 -  Room 309 at 9:30 a.m.

SUBJECT: Support - House Bill 2078 - Relating to  the Small Business Regulatory
Flexibility Act

As a member of the Small Business Regulatory Review Board (SBRRB) for  the past 
year, I support House Bill 2078 as an individual.

SB2078 entitles the SBRRB to  a separate line item  within  the budget of the 
Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism.

The SBRRB is responsible for  reviewing Hawaii Administrative Rules proposed by 

State and County agencies to  determine the  impact on Hawaii small businesses. It 
is an essential voice in determining business impact and seeking ways to  work 
with  the rule-drafting agencies to  lessen the often very damaging effect this has 
on those businesses least able to  hand the added burden.

Please strongly consider a separate budget line item  for  the SBRRB so it can 

continue in its quest to  support Hawaii's regulatory environment more effectively 
and efficiently.

Thank you for  allowing me to  provide testimony in support of House Bill 2078.



 
HEARING BEFORE THE HOUSE COMMITTEE ON                                                                                 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & BUSINESS 
HAWAII STATE CAPITOL, HOUSE CONFERENCE ROOM 309 

FRIDAY, JANUARY 31, 2020 AT 9:30 A.M. 
 
To The Honorable Angus L.K. McKelvey, Chair; 
The Honorable Lisa Kitagawa, Vice Chair; and 
Members of the Committee on Economic Development & Business, 
 

TESTIMONY IN SUPPORT OF HB2078 RELATING TO THE                                                             
SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY FLEXABILITY ACT 

 
Aloha, my name is Pamela Tumpap and I am the President of the Maui Chamber of 
Commerce, with approximately 650 members. I am writing share our support of 
HB2078. 
 
The Maui Chamber of Commerce supports HB2078 to entitle the Small Business           
Regulatory Review Board to a separate line item within the budget of DBEDT. The 
Small Business Regulatory Review Board was created to help share the voice of small 
businesses and give an opportunity to address business concerns on regulations and 
rules. They are a much needed body to inform both legislators and the government                         
departments how regulations impact businesses. We wholeheartedly support the  
Small Business Regulatory Review Board having its own line item funding to ensure 
they are successful in their purpose, without being subject to cuts that have occurred in 
the past when they were part of the broader DBEDT funding.   
 
We appreciate the opportunity to testify on this matter and ask that this bill be passed. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Pamela Tumpap 
President 
 
 
 

95 Mahalani Street, Suite 22A, Wailuku, Hawaii  96793 808-244-0081  info@MauiChamber.com   MauiChamber.com 

To advance and promote a healthy economic environment 
for business, advocating for a responsive government and 
quality education, while preserving Maui’s unique  
community characteristics. 

kitagawa3
Late



TESTIM ONY

TO: Chair McKelvey, Vice Chair Kitagawa, and Members of the House
Committee on Economic Development & Business

FROM: Robert Cundiff

DATE: January 31, 2020 -  Room 309 at 9:30 a.m.

SUBJECT: Support - House Bill 2078 -  Relating to the Small Business Regulatory
Flexibility Act

I submit this testimony in support of House Bill 2078 as an individual. I have been a 
member of the Small Business Regulatory Review Board (SBRRB) for the past 5 years 
and believe this measure will be extremely beneficial for SBRRB’s outreach and 
operating expenses.

Specifically, House Bill 2078 entitles the SBRRB to a separate line item within the 
budget of the Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism.

Without a budget, the SBRRB volunteers have been challenged to provide sufficient 
outreach to the small business community to provide a valuable, needed service to 
enable and enhance the growth of small business in Hawaii. Curtailing, and or 
minimizing the negative economic impact that existing and proposed rules/regulations 
have on the thousands of small businesses is not an option if we are to sustain positive 
economic growth within the State.

I am proud of the success and accomplishments this hardworking group of gratis 
members has had with no specific budget, but the SBRRB could greatly improve 
outreach to the small business community if a sufficient budget was granted.

Thank you for hearing my comments and support of House Bill 2078.

LATE
TESTIMONY

TO: Chair McKelvey, Vice Chair Kitagawa, and Members of the House
Committee on Economic Development & Business

FROM: Robert Cundiff

DATE: January 31, 2020 — Room 309 at 9:30 a.m.

SUBJECT: Support - House Bill 2078 — Relating to the Small Business Regulatory
Flexibility Act

l submit this testimony in support of House Bill 2078 as an individual. l have been a
member of the Small Business Regulatory Review Board (SBRRB) for the past 5 years
and believe this measure will be extremely beneficial for SBRRB’s outreach and
operating expenses.

Specifically, House Bill 2078 entitles the SBRRB to a separate line item within the
budget of the Department of Business, Economic Development and Tourism.

Without a budget, the SBRRB volunteers have been challenged to provide sufficient
outreach to the small business community to provide a valuable, needed sen/ice to
enable and enhance the growth of small business in Hawaii. Curtailing, and or
minimizing the negative economic impact that existing and proposed rules/regulations
have on the thousands of small businesses is not an option if we are to sustain positive
economic growth within the State.

I am proud of the success and accomplishments this hardworking group of gratis
members has had with no specific budget, but the SBRRB could greatly improve
outreach to the small business community if a sufficient budget was granted.

Thank you for hearing my comments and support of House Bill 2078.



 

V. Administrative Matters 

A. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy 
Activities and Programs in accordance with the 
Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, HRS, 
including: 

1. “Business in Hawaii” on ThinkTech – Taping 
Scheduled January 23, 2020 

2. Discussion of Board’s Potential Outreach 
Opportunities 

 
 


	III.  New Business – Before Public Hearing
	III.  New Business – Before Public Hearing
	IV.  Old Business – After Public Hearing
	A. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities   and Programs in accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, HRS, including:
	1. “Business in Hawaii” on ThinkTech – Taping Scheduled January 23, 2020

	Exhibit 1.pdf
	Structure Bookmarks
	Exhibit 1
	Exhibit 1
	Exhibit 1


	H1
	P
	Sect
	Table
	TR
	TH
	Figure




	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P
	P


	DLIR 12-12-45.3 & 12-45.4 State Fire Code SBIS PPH.pdf
	If the proposed rule affects small business and are not exempt as noted above, please provide a reasonable determination of the following:
	* * *

	DLIR 12-12-45.3 & 12-45.4 State Fire Code (Ramseyer).pdf
	Water-Based Systems
	Other Systems
	NFPA References
	Other Systems
	Other Systems

	ADP5B0D.tmp
	III.  New Business – Before Public Hearing
	III.  New Business – Before Public Hearing
	A. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, HRS, including:
	1. “Business in Hawaii” on ThinkTech – Taping Scheduled January 23, 2020
	2. Discussion of Board’s Potential Outreach Opportunities


	HB2078 - SBRFA - Support.pdf
	TO:  Chair McKelvey, Vice Chair Kitagawa, and Members of the House     Committee on Economic Development & Business
	FROM:  Robert Cundiff
	SUBJECT: Support - House Bill 2078 – Relating to the Small Business Regulatory    Flexibility Act

	HB2078_TESTIMONY_EDB_01-31-20_.PDF
	HB-2078_James E. Coon
	HB-2078_Tim Lyons
	HB-2078_Dan Kouchi
	HB-2078_Garth Yamanaka
	HB-2078_Nancy Atmospera-Walsh
	HB-2078_Mary Albitz
	HB-2078_William Lydgate
	HB-2078_James (Kimo) Lee
	LATE-HB-2078_Pamela Tumpap
	LATE-HB-2078_Robert Cundiff

	ADPBD96.tmp
	III.  New Business – Before Public Hearing
	III.  New Business – Before Public Hearing
	III.  New Business – Before Public Hearing
	A. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, HRS, including:
	1. “Business in Hawaii” on ThinkTech – Taping Scheduled January 23, 2020
	2. Discussion of Board’s Potential Outreach Opportunities


	DCCA 16-71 Relating to Certified Public Accountants and Public Accountants SBIS memo PPH.pdf
	STATE OF HAWAII

	ADP3581.tmp
	SMALL BUSINESS REGULATORY REVIEW BOARD
	I. Call to Order
	II. Approval of January 16, 2020 Meeting Minutes
	IV. Legislative Matters
	V. Administrative Matters
	A. Update on the Board’s Upcoming Advocacy Activities and Programs in accordance with the Board’s Powers under Section 201M-5, Hawaii Revised Statutes including:

	VI. Next Meeting: Thursday, March 19, 2020, at 10:00 a.m., 235 South Beretania Street, Leiopapa A Kamehameha Building (State Office Tower), Conference Room 405, Honolulu, HI  96813
	VII. Adjournment


	Date: 1/21/2020
	Department or Agency: Department of Labor & Industrial Relations, State Fire Council
	Administrative Rule Title and Chapter: HAR Title 12 Chapters 12-45.3 & 12-45.4
	Chapter Name: State Fire Code
	Contact PersonTitle: Gary Lum / Administrative Specialist II
	Email: glum@honolulu.gov
	Phone: 723-7169
	pursuant to HRS 927: No
	If Yes provide details: 
	New: On
	Repeal: On
	Amendment: Off
	Compilation: Off
	II Will the proposed rules affect small business: Yes_2
	statute or ordinance: No_3
	IV Is the proposed rule being adopted pursuant to emergency rulemaking HRS 201M2a: No_4
	Text 1: The adoption of chapter 12-45.4 as the State Fire Code will not increase the economic burden on small businesses compared to the current State Fire Code.
	Text 2: None.  The new State Fire Code deletes all permit or fee requirements.  Permit fees may be included when the State Fire Code is adopted by county ordinance by the respective county councils.
	Text 2a: 
	Text 2b: 
	Text 3: None.  There should be no direct or indirect impact to the Department of Labor and Industrial Relations, to which the SFC is administratively attached.  The State Fire Code is based on a national model fire code, which upon its adoption, is transmitted to the respective county councils, which adopts it by ordinance as part of the county fire code, with local amendments for administering, permitting, and enforcement by the county fire chiefs
	Text 2c: 
	Text 2d: 
	Text 4: (a) Deletion of permit and/or permit fee requirements.  Permits and fees will be administered by the counties.  (b) Consistent statewide standardization of fire inspections, testing and maintenance for required fire protection systems.  (c) The adoption of the National Fire Protection Association Fire Code (NFPA), 2018 edition, as amended, is consistent with the previously adopted state fire code.  (d) The proposed State Fire Code prescribes the minimum requirements necessary to establish a reasonable level of fire and life safety. 
	Text 5: HRS 132-3 requires the SFC to review and adopt the State Fire Code.  HRS 107-25 requires the State Building Code Council (SBCC) to adopt the latest edition of the State Fire Code as adopted by the SFC.
	Text 6: The latest edition of the NFPA fire code provides for the latest technologies, materials, methods and specifications that provide the most efficient and economical means to achieve fire and life safety.  The new rules allows for alternative methods that will secure equivalent fire safety with the approval of the approving authority.  
	Text 7: In November 2019 the SFC sent a message to stakeholders on an Advisory Committee that included businesses that would be required to comply with the code, soliciting feedback on the draft rules.  
	Text 7a: No responses on the solicitation were received. 
	Text 8: The proposed rules are no more stringent than other applicable federal or state laws, statutes or codes.
	Text 8b: 
	Text 8a: 
	Text 8c: 
	Text 8d: 
	Text 8e: 


